Public Document Pack

South Somerset District Council
Notice of Meeting

District Executive

. Making a difference where it counts .

Thursday 3rd December 2015
9.30 am

Council Chamber
Council Offices
Brympton Way
Yeovil

Somerset BA20 2HT

Disabled Access is available at this meeting venue.

&

Members listed on the following page are requested to attend the meeting.
The public and press are welcome to attend.
If you would like any further information on the items to be discussed, please ring the

Agenda Co-ordinator, Angela Cox 01935 462148, website:
www.southsomerset.gov.uk

This Agenda was issued on Wednesday 25 November 2015.

lan Clarke, Assistant Director (Legal & Corporate Services)

This information is also available on our website %}n,_u,
www.southsomerset .gov.u k INVESTORS IN PEOPLE


http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/

District Executive Membership

Ric Pallister

Carol Goodall

Peter Gubbins
Henry Hobhouse
Shane Pledger

Jo Roundell Greene
Sylvia Seal

Peter Seib

Angie Singleton
Nick Weeks

Information for the Public

The District Executive co-ordinates the policy objectives of the Council and gives the Area
Committees strategic direction. It carries out all of the local authority’s functions which are
not the responsibility of any other part of the Council. It delegates some of its responsibilities
to Area Committees, officers and individual portfolio holders within limits set by the Council’s
Constitution. When major decisions are to be discussed or made, these are published in the
Executive Forward Plan in so far as they can be anticipated.

Members of the Public are able to:-

o attend meetings of the Council and its committees such as Area Committees, District
Executive, except where, for example, personal or confidential matters are being
discussed;

e speak at Area Committees, District Executive and Council meetings;

e see reports and background papers, and any record of decisions made by the Council
and Executive;

o find out, from the Executive Forward Plan, what major decisions are to be decided by the
District Executive.

Meetings of the District Executive are held monthly at 9.30 a.m. on the first Thursday of the
month in the Council Offices, Brympton Way.

The Executive Forward Plan and copies of executive reports and decisions are published on
the Council’s web site - www.southsomerset.gov.uk.

The Council’s Constitution is also on the web site and available for inspection in Council
offices.

The Council’s corporate priorities which guide the work and decisions of the Executive are
set out below.

Further information can be obtained by contacting the agenda co-ordinator named on the
front page.

South Somerset District Council - Corporate Aims

Our key aims are: (all equal)

e Jobs - We want a strong economy which has low unemployment and thriving
businesses

e Environment - We want an attractive environment to live in with increased recycling and
lower energy use

e Homes - We want decent housing for our residents that matches their income

e Health and Communities - We want communities that are healthy, self-reliant, and have
individuals who are willing to help each other

Ordnance Survey mapping/map data included within this publication is provided by South Somerset District Council under
licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to undertake its statutory functions on behalf of the district.
Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for advice where they wish to licence Ordnance
Survey mapping/map data for their own use. South Somerset District Council - LA100019471 - 2015.



http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/

District Executive
Thursday 3 December 2015

Agenda

Minutes of Previous Meeting

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the District Executive meeting held on 5th
November 2015.

Apologies for Absence
Declarations of Interest

In accordance with the Council's current Code of Conduct (adopted July 2012), which
includes all the provisions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI), personal and
prejudicial interests, Members are asked to declare any DPI and also any personal
interests (and whether or not such personal interests are also "prejudicial”) in relation to
any matter on the Agenda for this meeting. A DPI is defined in The Relevant Authorities
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (Sl 2012 No. 1464) and Appendix 3
of the Council’'s Code of Conduct. A personal interest is defined in paragraph 2.8 of the
Code and a prejudicial interest is defined in paragraph 2.9.

Members are reminded that they need to declare the fact that they are also a member of
a County, Town or Parish Council as a Personal Interest. As a result of the change made
to the Code of Conduct by this Council at its meeting on 15+ May 2014, where you are
also a member of Somerset County Council and/or a Town or Parish Council within
South Somerset you must declare a prejudicial interest in any business on the agenda
where there is a financial benefit or gain or advantage to Somerset County Council
and/or a Town or Parish Council which would be at the cost or to the financial
disadvantage of South Somerset District Council. If you have a prejudicial interest you
must comply with paragraphs 2.9(b) and 2.9(c) of the Code.

Public Question Time

Questions, statements or comments from members of the public are welcome at the
beginning of each meeting of the Council. The total period allowed for public participation
shall not exceed 15 minutes except with the consent of the Council and each individual
speaker shall be restricted to a total of three minutes. Where there are a number of
persons wishing to speak about the same matter, they should consider choosing one
spokesperson to speak on their behalf where appropriate. If a member of the public
wishes to speak they should advise the committee administrator and complete one of the
public participation slips setting out their name and the matter they wish to speak about.
The public will be invited to speak in the order determined by the Chairman. Answers to
guestions may be provided at the meeting itself or a written reply will be sent
subsequently, as appropriate. Matters raised during the public question session will not
be debated by the Council at that meeting.

Chairman's Announcements



10.

11.

12.
13.

Items for Discussion
Funding for Citizens Advice South Somerset 2016/17 (Pages 5 - 14)

Quarterly Performance and Complaints Monitoring Report - 2nd Quarter
2015/16 (Pages 15 - 23)

Heart of the South West Formal Devolution Bid

The Heart of the South West formal devolution bid is due to be discussed at a meeting in
Cullompton on Wednesday 25" November. Therefore, this report will be circulated
under separate cover on Friday 27" November to include the latest information from that
meeting.

Report of the Licensing Task and Finish Group (Pages 24 - 38)

Yeovil Innovation Centre - Business Plan and Update Report (Pages 39 - 60)

Notification of an Urgent Executive Decision: The transfer of two sections of
SSDC land needed to conclude the Horsey Roundabout improvements,
Yeovil by 30 November 2015 (Pages 61 - 65)

District Executive Forward Plan (Pages 66 - 70)

Date of Next Meeting (Page 71)



Agenda Iltem 6

Funding for Citizens Advice South Somerset 2016/17

Executive Portfolio Holder: Councillor Sylvia Seal, Leisure and Culture

Strategic Director: Rina Singh, Strategic Director (Place and Performance)
Assistant Directors: Kim Close / Helen Rutter, Assistant Director (Communities)
Lead Officers: Kim Close / David Crisfield

Contact Details: Kim.close@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462060

david.crisfield@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462240

Purpose of the Report

This report sets out the outcomes of a review of Citizens Advice South Somerset (CASS)
and seeks the approval of the District Executive on the level of funding to be included in the
2016-17 budget.

Forward Plan

This report appeared on the District Executive Forward Plan with an anticipated Committee
date of 3" December 2015.

Public Interest

e CASS is the major provider of free, confidential independent and impartial advice in
the South Somerset area. Advice services are quality assured under the national
Citizens Advice Membership Scheme.

¢ In addition the organisation aims to improve policies and practices that affect people’s
lives.

e The Bureau has been serving the community of South Somerset since 1961.

SSDC supports CASS to ensure that people across South Somerset are able to access free,
impartial and expert advice; to ensure that isolated and vulnerable people in the district are
able to access services fairly and not be disadvantaged by their circumstances; to ensure
that policies are improved; to deliver services to some of those people most in need; and to
meet a range of objectives in our Council Plan.

In addition to financial support SSDC have also assisted CASS with premises having co-
located them in Petters House along with the council’'s own Welfare Advice Team as a step
towards creating an Information and Advice hub.

Recommendation

It is recommended that District Executive:-

1. Agrees to an allocation of £121,730 for South Somerset Citizens Advice Bureau in
the 2016/17 budget.

2. Notes that funding will be reviewed annually and be subject to the implementation of
a new service specification that will require a series of service improvements that will
deliver improved outcomes for South Somerset residents.

Background

At the 5 March 2015 District Executive meeting, the council approved grant funding of
£121,730 for CASS for the financial year 2015/16.

Page 5


mailto:Kim.close@southsomerset.gov.uk
file://///ict/data/share_bw/Area%20Development/South/CAB/15-16/david.crisfield@southsomerset.gov.uk%20

Following this decision, a review of CASS’s activity was commissioned by the Portfolio
Holder, ClIr Sylvia Seal, to assess the quality of the services received and to ascertain
whether the council can achieve improved levels of service within the available funding
envelope for 2016/17 and beyond. The review was undertaken between March and July
2015 and comprised a comprehensive evaluation of CASS services and an analysis of
performance data and other historical and anecdotal matters.

The results of the review were subsequently shared with the CEO and trustees of CASS. The
positive response made by CASS to the issues raised and the progress they have made in
the intervening months have directly informed this report’s recommendation.

On the 28 October a further progress meeting took place between Portfolio Holder Clir Sylvia
Seal, Corporate Director Rina Singh, CASS CEO Angela Kerr and Chair of Trustees Lin

Cousins. As an outcome of this meeting the Portfolio Holder confirmed her support for a
recommendation of one year’s funding at the 2015/16 level.

Review

The following sets out in summary the issues covered by the review, the specific areas of
concern and the response by CASS describing both the progress that has already been
made and the improvements that are in hand.

The following activities were undertaken as part of the review:-

i.  Funding per head of population comparison against 25 other council areas

ii.  An analysis of factors with the potential to influence future information and advice
priorities

iii. Analysis of CASS’s 2013/14 and 2014/15 performance data benchmarked against
seven comparator CABx and their respective funding authorities.

iv.  Funding Options Appraisal

i. Funding per head of population comparison

This comprised an analysis of the level of core funding 25 councils give to their CAB as
compared with their populations.

The cost of providing the service per head of population ranged from £0.13pp to £2.12pp.
SSDC at £0.74pp sits at the lower end of this range.

ii.  Analysis of factors with the potential to influence future information and advice
priorities

a) The recently published Somerset Advice Strategy 2015-18 (led by Taunton CAB on
behalf of Somerset Advice Network) identifies a number of challenges facing the
Information and Advice sector. Amongst these are:-

e The cumulative impact of cuts in public funding - cuts to council services which

affect residents and the risk of reduced funding for Voluntary, Community and
Social Enterprise sector advice agencies.

Page 6



The wider influences of increasing social inequalities — e.g. the cumulative impact
of housing and other cost increases alongside low/stagnant/irregular incomes.

The impact of debt and poverty-related stress on health and wellbeing.

The need for consistent and inclusive advice services across rural and urban
Somerset.

b) An analysis of data sets and research to understand what challenges there might be

to future Information and Advice needs highlighted some indicators that will be
relevant to how a it for the future’ CAB will look. These were:-

An ageing population with the challenges of access, digital exclusion, changes
in social welfare legislation, the rise in the number of carers and an increase in
the number of older grandparents requiring debt and money advice as a
consequence of providing financial support to their children and/or grandchildren.

Rurality with the challenges of poor public transport affecting access; poor
broadband coverage and the relative higher costs of living creating such things as
fuel poverty and the need for money, debt and benefits advice.

Housing with the challenges of high cost housing relative to incomes and limited
availability of private rented and social housing.

Welfare Reform with the ongoing effects of welfare reform and the yet unknown
impact of Universal Credit. Also the increasing number of people in work and
receiving benefit has increased the complexity of benefits claims.

SSDC’s own Welfare Advice Service have also set out how they would like to work
more effectively with CASS in the future so as to improve the overall experience for
customers. In particular they would like to see CASS introduce systems of working
and client management that will improve:-

e Accessibility across the whole of South Somerset for crisis/emergency
assistance (e.g. LAS, food parcels, emergency advice/advocacy).

¢ Responsibility to follow up client casework e.g. chasing up decisions, appeal
delays etc.

o Where support (or follow-on support) is not able to be provided, refer to an
agency that can until a conclusion is achieved.

e The up-skilling of volunteers as well as paid staff to undertake casework with
clients.

o If appeal work is undertaken, to fully represent clients at Tribunals (following
training of CAB staff/volunteers in tribunal representation, SSDC’s Welfare
Advice Team would be happy to provide support through shadowing etc.).

CASS Response

With access to services being a common factor in many of the issues in b) above, CASS will
be continuing the development of the telephone advice services and will continue to bring
forward other ways for people to access services.

Page 7



Use of the email advice service is increasing steadily (150 users between April 2014 and
January 2015) and a further 225 users since February 2015.

A pilot project is also underway with the Symphony Hub whereby CASS specialist Welfare
Benefits advisers will be available to Symphony clients via skype facilitated by Symphony
key workers. This represents an innovative and sustainable response to the need to bring
advice into the homes of people who might otherwise find accessing the service difficult.

To further develop the working relationship between CASS and our own Welfare Advice
team, both parties have taken part in periodic meetings. This will be further enhanced
through a requirement to hold regular joint meetings as part of the 2016/17 service
specification.

iii.  Analysis of CASS’s 2013/14 and 2014/15 performance data benchmarked
against seven comparator CABx and their respective funding authorities.

When reviewing the performance data that was reported to District Executive in March 2015,
as supplemented with the final quarter figures for 2014/15, the following issues emerged as
those with which we had concerns.

In order to provide a means of benchmarking the CASS information, a comparator ‘family’ of
7 other CABx was selected (Bridport; Sherborne/Dorchester; Bournemouth; Poole; Stroud;
Braintree; Harrogate) based on having similar sized populations and levels of local authority
funding.

a) Volunteers
Review findings
CASS appeared to operate with a distinctly lower than average number of volunteers.

We had also received some anecdotal feedback which pointed to a past organisational
culture having possibly contributed to poor volunteer recruitment and retention levels.

CASS response

A new volunteer involvement strategy and campaign has been implemented. Volunteer
numbers are improving and this is an upward trend. Key to the successful recruitment and
retention of volunteers for the future will be that recruitment is based on a proper
understanding of the core skills necessary for advice work and on those people who are
willing and able to train for the available roles. This should shift the emphasis on to the
guality rather than just the quantity of volunteers.

The number of volunteers currently working for CASS is confirmed as being 43 (excluding
the Trustees and the ‘Friends’). The CEO is confident that with new plans in place for
volunteer recruitment and training they will achieve their target of 50 volunteers in the near
future. Plans include taking the training out to Wincanton and Chard with the aim of
increasing local volunteer teams to support service expansion in those towns. Regular
reports on the impact of their new approach to volunteer recruitment and training will be
provided to the council and welcome the opportunity to work with you on this in future.

The new volunteer recruitment campaign commenced with an event at Yeovil College on the

21st September 2015. Recruitment campaigns for Wincanton and Chard have also been
planned.

Page 8



The volunteer training programme has also been revised and is now available as an info-
graphic to present to all potential volunteers during their initial interviews. This will help to
make much clearer to potential volunteers how to navigate through the volunteering
opportunities or into alternative volunteering if the training commitment for the service is too
much for them. (A copy of the Infographic is attached at Appendix 1).

b) Abandoned call rates (the percentage of calls to the bureau that do not get
answered).

Review Findings

Up to the final quarter figures for 2014/15 the abandoned call rate had been high, peaking at
around 70%.

Although the rate reduced further between April and July 2015, compared with the 7
benchmarked bureaux, this placed CASS’s answered call rate as average but still noticeably
lower than the best performing who reported abandoned call rates of only 1%.

CASS response

The introduction of ‘Adviceline’™ has kicked-started a much improved phone based service.
Currently ¢50% plus of calls are now being answered which is well in excess of the target
they had set themselves. Progress with implementing the Somerset Adviceline service has
been pleasing and CASS’s contribution to making this work has exceeded that of the other
partners. This is, however, still a work in progress and the recruitment and training of
Adviceline volunteers has been given a high priority. A stretch target of 80% answered calls
will also been included in the updated business plan.

An independent assessment of Somerset Adviceline has shown that resources need to be
directed to Mondays and Tuesdays which are the busiest days. Increasing the number of
volunteers and the introduction of new processes such as remote/home based telephone
answering are being considered.

Also under consideration is the introduction of an answerphone message alerting callers to
the the possibility of long waits on the telephone on a Monday and Tuesday and encouraging
people whose issues are not urgent to call back on other days.

A marketing plan is also being put together to better inform and prepare the public for
Adviceline and how best to use it.

(*‘Adviceline’ is a networked telephone system where callers, if unable to get through to their
local bureau, are routed to the next available bureau within the network, which for the
Somerset Adviceline will be the other Somerset CABx. Any overflow may be routed to one of
three national call centres (Caerphilly, Merton or Gateshead) but these calls can be routed
straight back into the waiting list for the local bureau if the enquiry has to have a local
response.)

c) Debt and Benefit related enquiries
Review findings
A reading of CASS’s 2014/15 performance data, when compared with the benchmarked

CABYX, showed a reduction in the number of debt enquiries and new debt enquiries requiring
casework support, a reduction that appeared counter intuitive and contra to the understood

Page 9



trend; particularly when taking into consideration the ongoing effects of the economic
recession, the increase of people on ‘in work’ benefits and the introduction and continued
implementation of welfare reform.

CASS response

CASS’s Debt Caseworkers had just under 100 live debt cases open as of September 2015;
these cases take between one to three months to resolve. This figure is being sustained
fairly consistently throughout the year and they have not seen a decrease in the levels of
debt case work. Debt and Welfare benefits clients are also presenting with lengthier and
more complex problems so whilst overall numbers may appear to be down the complexity of
cases has increased.

Data Reports on debt and benefits extracted for SSDC’s activity reports do not include work
funded by other sources.

The recording and interpretation of debt statistics is also more complex than it might appear
on initial reading and which cannot be fully understood through a simple comparison with
previous year figures. For example, Citizens Advice’s national campaign against pay day
lending had dramatically reduced the number of people locally in trouble with loan-sharks
which would show as a reduction in debt cases.

Clients are also directly referred into specialist teams therefore by-passing the drop-in
service and falling outside core data statistics.

d) Organisational Income - achieving more sustainable income streams for core
services

Review Findings

When looked at in totality, the funding CABX receive from their councils may appear to be a
small percentage of overall spend. However, as a result of the benchmarking exercise it was
clear that in all cases council funding is supporting core functions with the balance of funding
financing additional projects or targeted information and advice activities. This places them
in a vulnerable situation if council funding were at risk of being heavily cut or withdrawn.

Whilst reliance on councils for core funding may be considered high risk, especially in the
context of austerity and the increasing pressures on public finance, CASS’s situation is no
different to that of other CABx. All are dependent on their council for core funding and whilst
all CAB managers’ report success in diversifying income this is only in relation to project
funding.

Furthermore council funding officers that were interviewed reported that whilst in some
circumstances they may commission additional one-off projects or services, their principal
funding is provided to support the core ‘generalist’ service.

CASS response

CASS endorse the conclusion of our review that “without Council funding supporting core
services most CAB would struggle to function or at worst would cease to exist”

One of the key roles of the new CEO will be to secure sustainable funding for the
organisation and CASS will welcome the opportunity to work with SSDC on any opportunities
to secure such funds. They already have a number of funding applications in progress
including to the Big Lottery and Trust funds. A ‘Reaching Communities’ bid to enable the
opening up of advice pathways for vulnerable and isolated people has successfully passed

Page 10



through to a full second stage application and feedback on the bid thus far is that it has an
80% chance of being awarded funding.

e) Quality of Advice
Review Findings

Probably the most difficult area of the service to evaluate is that of the Quality of Advice
received by the public. Whilst there has been some anecdotal evidence to suggest that
clients have at times not received as good a service as should be expected there is no way
of testing this unless a comprehensive ‘Mystery Shopping’ exercise were to be carried out.

The only objective measure we have of Quality, therefore, is the three yearly Quality of
Advice audit conducted by Citizens Advice nationally. The most recent was conducted in the
spring of 2014. This did raise some issues around the quality of initial ‘Gateway
assessments and follow up advice.

CASS response

The national Citizens Advice ‘Quality Audit’ system has undergone a recent and radical
change and CASS are positively embracing that change. The new system will provide
CASS, and SSDC as funders, with a better picture of organisational performance. It should
be noted that under the previous Quality system the audit score of 75% achieved by CASS
would have been considered a good score with only a minority of Citizens Advice
organisations achieving 80% plus.

Funding from reserves has been agreed by the trustees to appoint an additional two
casework supervisor posts. Not only with this help with the quality assuring of advice given
by volunteers and specialist caseworkers but it will also provide the capacity to enable CASS
to roll out a full service in outreach settings.

Staff and volunteers took part in an away day on the 24th September to agree the approach
to the adoption of the new National Citizens Advice Model, known as the “dynamic advice”
model.

CASS have also approached Citizens Advice nationally to be an early adopter of the new
quality framework in October 2015.

The first of several strategy reviews with key staff and Board members has been held with
the Board approving a redesign of the over-arching management of their client services.
iv. Funding Options Appraisal

The review also needed to consider all the possible funding options open to the council once
the current funding ends on 31st March 2016.

The following 6 options, including an option to end funding, were considered.
Option 1: End Funding.
Option 2: Bring in-house.

Option 3: Part fund and part invest in our own Welfare Advice service.

Page 11



Option 4: Invest only in those Information and Advice areas of most relevance to us i.e.
benefits, Debt, Housing.

Option 5: Embark on a competitive tendering exercise.

Option 6: Re-contract with the current provider supported with a new service specification.
Taking into account the absence of other generalist information and advice services in the
marketplace, the issues of cost, and the outcome of the wider review that is the subject of
this report, the conclusion of the appraisal was that Option 6 would be the preferred and
most practicable way forward.

Proposed Changes to Service Specification

If members are minded to recommend an allocation of £121,730 for CASS in the 2016/17
budget, a new service specification would be drawn up to address the issues highlighted in
this report and to ensure that continuous improvement was effectively picked up through
performance monitoring.

This would place greater emphasis on Outcomes with monitoring requirements that would
clearly demonstrate how CASS is making a difference to the lives of residents.

Performance will be monitored regularly with the submission of quarterly reports and twice
yearly monitoring meetings.

Financial Implications

If the budget allocation recommended is agreed, all funds in the CASS budget will be
committed for 2016/17.

Risk Matrix

Risk Profile before officer recommendations

10edw|

Likelihood
B ——

Risk Profile after officer recommendations

Page 12



10edw|

R/CpP/CP
CY/IF
Likelihood
—_—
Key
Categories Colours (for further detail please refer to Risk
management strategy)
R = Reputation Red = High impact and high probability
CpP = Corporate Plan Priorities Orange = Major impact and major probability
Cp = Community Priorities Yellow = Moderate impact and moderate probability
Ccy = Capacity Green = Minor impact and minor probability
F = Financial Blue = Insignificant impact and insignificant

probability

Corporate Priority Implications

residents

Work with partners to contribute to tackling youth unemployment

Minimise homelessness by providing advice, support and housing options
Work with partners to combat fuel poverty
Provide Welfare Benefits support and advice to tackle poverty in our vulnerable

Carbon Emissions and Climate Change Implications

None

Equality and Diversity Implications

Working with the voluntary sector is one of the Council’s means of providing services to hard
to reach groups and engaging with communities and individuals who otherwise find it hard to
access public services. CASS deliver services to some of the most vulnerable people in the
district. Services are free and are provided to all regardless of age, race, gender, sexual
orientation, religion. The CASS has an adopted Equalities Policy.

Background Papers

CASS report to District Executive - March 2015

Page 13




T abed

Appendix 1

Volunteer Training

Your training programme will be tailored to

your interests,

availability and pace of learning.

We will equip you with the knowledge, skills and

Workshop

Induction and overview
of Citizens Advice.
Skills development,
listening, questioning,

Self-study

Interactive online
learning and home
study using the
information packs

Support and
Review
One to one reviews

with the volunteer
training officer.

Shadowing

Shadowing of an
experienced volunteer,
across a range of roles
to understand the

\g
tools you will need in your role. Your training researching, using advice we provide. service that
will be something like this.... systems and resources. N we deliver.
Side by side
4 Trainee Advisers Workshops Trainees for Receptionist,
Side by side S krewialae gdmmls;rator,
® . ) esearcher
Trainees for Face to Face = Receptionist Observed by development, begin
Advisers, Phone Advisers j and Admin supervisor Debt, Beneﬂts. _ participation
agsﬁi?‘:g::\;:so:ss?sfm = Begin performing role Receptionist, Hto u;::;ﬁ' Em%l:yment, alongside
P: _p . I E510S g—: fully when signed off. Admin, Researcher. ev G KIS PraC dce experienced
experienced volunteer. S using case studies. volunteer.
Observed by
supervisor
Face to Face = =
Adviser, Phone Active % ) %
Adviser and %z Records checked = Observa;lons Ofr = > Developing
Email » Pparticipation for quality standard S prac(l;nced o 2“8 i S On-g.ct)lng ¢ Competence
Adviser. Begin performing role and feedback given. s :tar(;bark a S Zo;r:zlhlgs;rs as an Adviser
: eedback given.
fully when signed off. ;3 :gt weekly
v v
S Would you like to know
Months more about joining us
4406 and training as a Citizens \/
Months -
e Advice Volunteer? Experienced
Months Adviser

With no obligation come in for a chat
with June or Angela or give us a ring.

01935 847675




Agenda Item 7

Quarterly Performance and Complaints Monitoring Report - 2nd
Quarter 2015/16

Executive Portfolio Holder:  Ric Pallister, Strategy and Policy

Strategic Director: Rina Singh, Place and Performance

Assistant Director Martin Woods, Economy

Lead Officer: Andrew Gillespie / Charlotte Jones, Performance Managers
Contact Details: Andrew.gillespie @southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462364

charlotte.jones@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462565

Purpose of the Report

To present the corporate performance monitoring report covering the period from 1% July —
30th September 2015 (Q2).

Forward Plan

This report appeared on the District Executive Forward Plan with an expected date of 3"
December 2015.

Public Interest

The Council is accountable for its performance to the local community and we publish
performance data to enable us to demonstrate achievements against targets.

Recommendations

The District Executive is asked to note and comment on the corporate performance
monitoring report.

Background

The 20 performance indicators used in this report were selected and approved by members
on 3rd May 2012.

Performance

A summary of performance from 1st July — 30th September 2015 (Q2) is shown below with
full details provided at Appendix A:

Where appropriate, this information is colour coded, using red, amber, or green to indicate
performance against target

Page 15



Performance Summary:

Quarterly Breakdown:

0
—— 0%
1
9%

10
91%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
1 8% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0%
2 17% 1 9% 0 0% 0 0%
9 75% 10 91% 0 0% 0 0%
Commentary:

>10% Below Target

Within 10% of Target

On or Above Target

10

12 performance indicators can be compared against target for
Q2. As data is not available for PI031 this summary only
includes 11 of the corporate indicators. Percentages are
rounded to the nearest whole number.

Complaints

During the period 1st July — 30th September 2015, SSDC received 59 complaints, which is a
190% increase compared to the quarter 2 2014/15 figure of 31.

The chart and table below provide a summary of complaints received, with a detailed
breakdown by service at Appendix B.

Service

30
w 25
-
k=
(1]
o 20
£
S
o 15
)
]
2o 10
€
]
Z 5
mQ2
O ||.|| |||.|| HLEL |||||._'_.||||
2 42 4D D 2 = N Wn = N = ¥ un [7 ] VN VXX N VLU VO
55555085 EEEs08c8REELEC3ZEECE S
+ 'C a = L L o 2 = £ % € x o =
EEEEECECcE2LESTSIESDTEOE S2cg*xegdggos EQA
o < o - e [ j T < n ;
2929929 c 8UU8858SgnagTgT g 8 Eca ¥ @
000 0g0¥WE2ERaZRL o8- c= A s Ganyg 2
DO 0Ot ¥ESBSEwUOD >80 — 9L o5 =08
> > > > g £ E c O g 535 5 >F ¢c® o ¢ o L g® S5 5
wwwmeoE:Uhngmeusm % gmmu“&
DDDDS%UE‘“ UL._SODQ.E%SM — E v 8 ko)
LSS ga=goF L 0LV Qo c cuw c 0 9 n c
c € ] S O o £ ¥ o T ] =] <
wm o =2 c S > E o0 5 =L =3 3 < N
s3>0 2 cao 22T 3 o o ¢ <)
5] © & c 2 €555 T S92 5
Y o o g & S 7 g 9 © w a 2 S
< P QP < I = O w ™ n
<<< (] o c
S > = °
8 ) g =
=) 2 =
oo
c
w

Page 16




Financial Implications

There are no direct financial implications related to this report. However, financial
implications may need to be considered for possible actions necessary to address
performance in failing areas.

Risk Matrix
3
[o]
8
Likelihood
_—
Key
Categories Colours (for further detail please refer to Risk management strategy)
R = Reputation Red = High impact and high probability
CpP = Corporate Plan Priorities Orange = Major impact and major probability
CP = Community Priorities Yellow = Moderate impact and moderate probability
CY = Capacity Green = Minor impact and minor probability
F = Financial Blue = Insignificant impact and insignificant probability

Council Plan Implications

Performance Management contributes towards the delivery of the SSDC Council Plan
through effective monitoring and smart target setting that help to deliver a continuous
improvement.

Carbon Emissions and Climate Change Implications

None

Equality and Diversity Implications

None

Privacy Impact Assessment

No issues.

Background Papers

Refreshed Council Plan 2012-15
(http://Iwww.southsomerset.gov.uk/about-us/our-vision/council-plan-2012---2015/ )

SSDC Complaints Procedure
(http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/contact-us/making-a-complaint-(1)/ )

DX report- refresh of corporate Indicators — DX May 2012
Annual Performance Report 2014/15 — DX July 2015

Page 17


http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/about-us/our-vision/council-plan-2012---2015/
http://www.southsomerset.gov.uk/contact-us/making-a-complaint-(1)/

Appendix A - Quarterly Performance Monitoring Report

Key: Red Amber Green
(More than 10% below target) (Within 10% of target) (On or above target)
Performance Measures with Targets:
. | P1003 - % of planning appeal decisions allowed against the 60
Indicator: i 7y
authority's decision to refuse |
Quarter Target: 33.0% % - CEE
Perf to Date: =R
Annual Target: 33.0% 40 =g \
2014/15: 2015/16: £ 30 \ |
a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 < \
W
50.0% @| 51.0% @| 41.0% @| 450% @ 11.0% ©@|28.0% @ \
Latest Comments including any necessary action: " i
o
During the period 1st July 2015 — 30th September 2015, 7 appeal decisions against refusal £ g g g S E
were received and 2 have been allowed which equales to 28% against a former BVPI target = 5 }." 3 = 5
(BV204) of 33%. o o o o o
FY Quarter
~ | PI004 - Number of days taken to process Housing Benefit/ Council 30
Indicator:
Tax Benefit new claims and change events
Quarter Target: | 14.00 25 |
Perf to Date:
Annual Target: | 1400 2 |
201415 201516 ‘E s |
a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2 B «
700 @] 800 @] 700 @] 000 @] 900 @] 1200 @ S e =07
Latest Comments including any necessary action: ll
[ — _
The average time taken to process a new claim or change of circumstances during this o o w ] © ©
quarter has increased due to clearing part of a back log of work. The service currently has = 3 b 3 a a
two staff vacancies. Steps have been taken to address performance and it is anticipated that 3 3 a 3 3 3
Q3 penormance will show some improvement on Q2 and further impmvemenl in Q4 FY Quarter
Indicator: | Pl 008 - Requests for action from the Streetscene team 3200
2800
Quarter Target: | 775
Perf to Date: 2400
Annual Target: | 3100 2 2000
2014/15: 2015/16: & oo
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 E 1200
445 ©| 549 @ | 556 ©@| 550 ©@| 568 @) 415 @ 800
Latest Comments including any necessary action: a0 | O
0
© @ e 2 e e
3 3 3 3 e a
3 3 8 3 5 5
FY Quarter
Indicator: | Pl 010 - Total number of fly tips reported o0
Quarter Target: 0
‘ Perf to Date: -
Annual Target: ‘ 1800 § 40 |
. = g K
2014/15: 2015/16: g | A \ S |
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 & 1 — e
- 2 200
266 © 358 ©@ | 244 © | 287 @ 250 @ 263 @ z
Latest Comments including any necessary action: "
0
© © e @ ES ©
- - - + a 3
= S & g = S
a Q Q o Q
FY Quarter

Page 18




Indicator: | P1011 - Total estimated cost of clearing reported fly tips

22000 |
Quarter Target: | 13.965 20000
Perf to Date: 18000
Annual Target: | 55.860 g 1o000 A
2014/15: 2015/16: By D
s e
a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 £ 10000 |
W 8000
| 16.942 @(10.225 @ 11.779 ©| 13,787 ©| 13263 & | 12,982 @ 6000
Latest Comments including any necessary action: ﬁ
D |
i § § § § &
= ) Y g = S
a a Q a a
FY Quarter
Indicator: | PI012 - Average number of days to respond to a reported fly tip , |
rter Ta 4
Suarter Taget: Perfto Date: i .:./
Annual Target: g f
2014/15: 2015/16: 23 O]
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 e | F,
30@ (30 @ [30@ | 40@ |40 @ 50 © =
1
| Latest Comments including any necessary action:
| This year we have focussed our resources towards other aspects of the service such as = - - - i -
weed control and litter clearance of ma]or roads & main road sweeping_ We have delivered 5 5 S 5 3 3
within the set timescales in the vast majority of cases, clearance has only gone over our 3 ] 3 g 2 a
| target in cases where we had to investigate and clarify the incident (such as potential @ @ 5 i o @
| asbestos tipped, or land ownership type issues). g
Indicator: P1013 - % of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and &0
composting
Quarter Target: | 45.0% 0 | .
Perf to Date: — O U —
Annual Target: | 45.0% o | :
2014/15: 2015/16: # 30 |
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2 |
452% ©]44.4% A)| 43.4% @[43.0% @& | 465% @ | 46.0% @
10 |
Latest Comments including any necessary action:
. oL
° e S @ © e
- - + + a3 "]
9.0% 3 8 3 3 5 3
FY Quarter
koo P1019 -Average number of days in Temporary Accommodation (Bed
& Breakfast) "
Quarter Target: | 35 12
Perf to Date:
Annual Target: | 45 10
5
2014/15: 2015/16: % 8
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 E 6
20© (00@ |00@ [01©@ | 05 @ 05 @ 4
' Latest Comments including any necessary action: 2 ;
- B’,. e O—(
e e o e e e
3 ¥ 3 . o 4
5 3 3 3 3 3
FY Quarter

Page 19




P1020 - Total number of people in Temporary Accommodation (all

Indicator: g
types) 75
Quarter Target: | 75 70
Perf to Date: e
Annual Target: | 75 s
2014/15: 2015/16: £ o
k-1
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 2%
. . 45
39@| 3@ 33@| 4@ 37 @ 40 @ o -1 O -
Latest Comments including any necessary action: 35 \ RO
30 L ~ =
2 e e 2 ] e
3 3 3 3 a8 a
3 3 8 3 5 8
FY Quarter
Indicator: Pl 031 - % of calls to contact centre resolved in the contact centre 70
m _I=l’_li
Quarter Target: | 62.0% 4
Perfto Date: |0 ® !
Annual Target: | 62.0%
F 40
2014/115: 2015/16: ™
30
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
650% ©| 650% @| 00% q 0.0% q 00% @| 00% @ “
Latest Comments including any necessary action: »
0 r —
Due to problems with integration between new Lync system and the Contact Centre telephony system no H = 2 = = -
performance data is available. : 2 2 2 i!; 2
The Contact Centre Management System has been tested and is ready to install as soon as the telephony o g 3 8 o E‘
firmware is compatible. The next release of the firmware is due atthe end of November. Apre-release FY Quarter
version has been tested which identified some stability issues that have now been logged with the
suppliers to fix before installation can be completed.
Indicator: P1 032 - Working days lost due to sickness absence per Full Time 15
Employee (FTE) 14
13 |
Quarter Target: | 400
Perfto Date: |48 12
Annual Target: | 800 w
Eoo |
2014/15: 2015/16: g e
e 8
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 E‘, 7
= £ 6
203 A| 423 (A 600 @ 857 @] 201 @& 480 & ;-
- =
Latest Comments including any necessary action: ;
o
71% of sickness absence in the year to date (YTD) has been classfied as long term sickness 3 7
and there are a number of Iong term absences where passible ill health retirements are being 0
progressed. o @ o o © ©
59% of staff have had no sickness absence in the YTD. g 3 3 = 3 3
Absence management training has been scheduled for managers to ensure good practice s ] 3 3 s 3
and consistency throughout the organisation. This will help ensure that short term absence is ¢ a e Bt 2 o
dealt with fairly and effectively.
Indicator: | P1035 - Percentage of Council Tax Collected 100 ®
%0 /\\
Quarter Target: | 55.0% 80 0
Perf to Date: »
Annual Target: | 97% s
2014/15: 2015/16: £ 50
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 40
206% ©@|57.4% @] 83.2% A| 97.0% ©| 206% @ |559% ©@ »
20
Latest Comments including any necessary action: 10
0
® ® ] o ® e
3 - S 3 o -
<t & & 3 = ]
a Q a (s} a
FY Quarter

Page 20




Performance Measures of Trend (no targets set as SSDC do not directly influence):

Indicator: | PI001a - Number of Housing Benefit cases received 15000
arter Target: NIA 14000
a Perf to Date:
Annual Target: N/A 13000
2014/15: 2015/16: £ 10
a1 Q2 a3 Q4 a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 3 11000
10,075 10,069 0,930 0,854 9,827 9,565 10000 s
Latest Comments including any necessary action: 9000 :
8000 .
5 3 8 3 5 3
Quarter
Indicator: | P1001b - Number of Council Tax Reduction cases received 15000
arter Target: N/A eon
v Perf to Date:
Annual Target: N/A 13000
201415 2016016 § 12000
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Qs | e TTTTOTo
11,320 | 11.201 11,078 11,023 | 10,826 10,580 10000
Latest Comments including any necessary action: 2000
8000 L
5 8 3 3 & 3
Quarter
Indicator: | Pl 002 - Total number of JSA claimants in South Somerset ':’:;‘g
arter Target: N/A oo
& Perf to Date: v
Annual Target: N/A £ 1500
2014/15 : 2015/16: | e
9
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 S
1,082 855 689 762 740 640 o
Latest Comments including any necessary action: m :
b >
643 - September / 643 - August / 633 - July g B § B 2 2
o g a 3 a 3
Quarter
dicator: PI009 - Number of bin collections missed per 1000 households (all X
°  types - dry recycling and kitchen waste, refuse and garden)
Quarter Target: N/A
Perf to Date: g’
Annual Target: N/A £
2014/15: 2015/16: g 2
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 | a4 3
3.75 277 1.91 245 2.51 227 2 1
Latest Comments including any necessary action:
0
3 3 3 3 a 3
5 8 3 3 5 3
FY Quarter

Page 21




.| PI015 - % of households on the Choice Based Letting waiting list (all 100
Indicator: :
categories) %0
Quarter Target: N/A Annual Target: | N/A 80
2014/15: 2015/16: 70
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 a3 | a4 2 —
Bronze 57 3% 55.4% 54.9% 54.2% 53.3% 52.7% &
Silver 20.8% 31.3% 31.0% 30.4% 31.5% 33.5% 30 e e e e
Gold 12.9% 13.3% 14.0% 15.3% 15.1% 136% L s
Emergency | 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.2% ': ' '
————————¢
Latest Comments including any necessary action: 3 g :;.‘ g § §
Q1 2015-16 Q2 2015-16 g é § g g §
Bronze 1.092 Eronze 1,092 FY Quarter
mergency
Erglt::jrgency 300 Gold 283 5 2ronae [l Emergency []Gow
: itver
Siver 647 Silver 697
_ | PI029 - Number of incidents of antisocial behaviour reported to 700
Indicator: 2 0 .
S$SDC (excluding flytipping and dead animals)
Quarter Target: N/A =
Perfto Date: | 927
Annual Target: N/A R
£ 500 =9
2014/15: 2015/16: § : )
a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 at Q2 Qs | a4 a0 Wy
433 511 369 414 373 554 -
Latest Comments including any necessary action:
200 .
Sllghl overall increase from last year of 8%. Most notable increases is that of reported E - “:‘ o - =
abandoned vehicles that have increased this year by 110% to a total of 97 from 46 last year. 4 I . s = &
Reports of noisy neighbours have seen an increase from 45 last year to 61 this, showing a o 3 3 3 o e
35% increase on the year and an increase of 154% from quarler 1. FY Quarter
Indicator: | Pl1033 - Total number of complaints received 400
Quarter Target: =1
rter Tai N/A
Perf to Date: . 00
Annual Target: N/A £ 250
2014/15: 2015/16: § 20
a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 a1 Q2 Q3 Q4 § 150
31 31 26 25 77 50 100 )
Latest Comments including any necessary action: o > ;
ol
= o & @ e i
The overall increase of complaints is largely due to the addition of two services, which are E = g = 2 2
now included in the complaints monitoring system. o 3 o 3 o 8
FY Quarter
Indicator: P1 034 - % of complaints resolved at stage 1 of complaints 100 > N o P
procedure % S
Quarter Target: N/A &
Perf to Date: i
Annual Target: N/A -
2014/15: 2015/16: 2 50
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 40
30
1000% | 100.0% 94 0% 95.3% 97 4% 96.6% 55
Latest Comments including any necessary action: 10
0.
Stage 1: 57 3 g ‘5: 3 5 5
Stage 2: 2 = 3 3 3 = 3
. o o o o (s}
Stage 3: 0 s

Page 22




Buturesy yeis

pannoay walqoidfo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|+|o|o|o|o|-|o|o|-|o|o|o|o|o|o|n|o|m|o|«

BupjIom
diysisupedo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o
panosduwy
ISEYNERERINES
jo Bupoyiuopnfo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|m|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o
panosduw

uonedIuNWWo)D
panoiduwy

Action by SSDC

ainpaso.d /aonoeidy
Buyiom ul sabueyd

Dm_N__DONW_ O|0O|0OO|N|O|O|O|O|OMOO|MO|0 00|00 T |0O|0|0|0|0|0 (T |dH T |Oo|N
” NOILOV ON
5 3
m- 3 000000000000000mOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
g junowy uoiresuadwo)
o
5O N/A
e . Z|o|z|o|z|o|o|o|z|z|z|z|Zz|Zz|o|z|Zz|o|o|z|o|z|Zz|Z|Zz|o|z|z|Z|o|z
M épanss| uonesuadwo)d
(tewspnquQ)
O|0O|0|0|0O|0O|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0O|0|0|O|Oo|Oo|o|0o|0o|0|0O|O0|O0|O|Oo
2aly] abeis
©[(1010811Q JULISISSY)
j= : ; O|0O|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|H|O|0O|H|O|O0|0O|0|0|0O|0O|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|Oo|o|o N~
o om] abeis o
n

(1abeuen
99IAI8S) auQ abels

BuljpueH yeisfjo|o|o|ojo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|+H|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|a|o|m|o|o

uonedIuNwWwo)
100d

adAl laylofo|o|o|o|+|o|o|o|o|o|g|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|m|o|o|o|o|o|o|-|-H|o|o|o

g ANjiqisuodsay
>| O|0O|0|0O|H|O|0O|0O|0|0|0O|H|O|O|0|0|0O|0|0|0|0|0|0O|o|o|o|0o|o|N|Oo|o
= 2dss 19N
uoisioag
o O|0O|0O|0O|0O|0O|0|0|0|0|0O|N|O|H|O|O|0O|0|0|0|0|0|0|0o|0|o|N|O|H|O(N
/A2110d Y1m anss|

uomirediqndj
/1UB1U0D YlIM Bnss|

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

JaAlep o1 ainje{flo|lo|o|o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|-|o|o|lo|o|o|o|o|-|o|o|o|o|o|o|n|o|~ o)«

\C__Gj—um_ O|0O|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0 |0|0O|0|0|0o|0o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o

UOYd O |0O|0O|0|H|0|0|0|0|0|H|H|0O|0|0|0|0|0|0|N/O|0|0|0|0|0|o|o|H|o|o

1BYIQOO|O|0|0|0|0|0O|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0 |0|0|0|0|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o

auljluQ 0000000000020000000000000001__”..00

1919 O|O|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|H|O|0|H|O|0|0|0|0|H|0O|0|0|0O|0|o|0o|0o|H|Oo|N

Access Method

uoslad U|O|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|0|+H|0|0|0|0 |H|O|0|0|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o

|lEWJRO|0O|0|0O|H|0|0|0|0|O|N|H|HNO|O|0O|00O|N|O|O|H|0O|0|0|0o|+H|o|o

(5TOZ J9qWaldss yiog

57

57

57

19| 11

Complaints Monitoring 1st July 2015 - 30th September 2015

Appendix B Q2

o|o|o|o|njolo|o|o|o|B|w|—|mo|o|d|lo|o|w|o|o|-|o|o|o|wn|«|Fo|m 5
- GT0Z AInr 40 31sT) 20
[{=]
[e101 sjure|dwod 91/ST0Z fo|o|—|o|~|—|o|o||o|R (|- o|o|n|o|o|o|w|o|-|-|o|o|o|Q|—|JF| o~ 9
e
m ST/PTOZ oldnjo|dlololofHmololo|lt|o|NSloo@looleleloleR ooy S
°
I =)
m YT/€T0C olololo|Qlololomi—lolo|-|Flo - Nlolojwolole-loloNeRleR <
Bl ~
o o o ™ olo@|ol®
" €1/¢10¢ oclolow|f-|olo|dldolol- NGl oQolomololQleBeR I
3 ©
S 0 o — 0 Olg2lole
z CT/TT0C M H MmN G OO gOooFe~Mgew~oo®-H oo @6 CI& %
o N
e TT/0T0Z oln|dn|Hlolololsolo|t|o|Blo|~Tlolowiololo|t|oloNlo(d oL N
o g
> S
=25t 8 HEEIME
clo|l® = RG] o
SIEEIE|G - 8,52 &ls © %|E I
Ela|lg|g|e b SISI&IEl 2= <4 =
S o090 4 < no|l2|2x(8|a 8 xS 0
S5 |0l 2= w|S|2|S Q|9 5 o|8 of
°|2/>12|8|l5/8|2| glglslo|T|T|o|w c 1) &
>l2|23|E|2|5|8|2 CEmvmmth ) G |o|E °
dl5122|2|E8I8|E|e|E|2|2|S 1 BhaElE 8 8l Iglz|5|E|ely =
o= = aQ
ol%|E|5|3/2 1052|2225 /5 | 4P =23 |:lol5|2]1/2] 22
Caooedgmuu%merm pagt 3l SHEIE
= c E|lo o =4 nl=E|Q — =
sfuiz|o|=|5|c|0|E|E|E|2|E5|8|5|c| 2|STe|s|S QIG|EI5(2|g|=|0|e
sleisis|s|e2=|E5|5|5|8|52|5| 5|5 83|32 gi5/2|8(28|8|E|8
emmmmn.m.wooomuewcnn.mmoRﬂe.memePUaa
ni<|<|<|<|<|@|0|o|o|o|G|0|a|dw|da|T|C|T|T|Q 3|5 a|a|x|n|d|a|S

- May be reported using more than one access method.
- May not always require action or may require more than one action to be taken.

- May cover more than one type.

Note: A single complaint:




Agenda Item 9

Report of the Licensing Task and Finish Group

Portfolio Holder: Sue Steele, Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee

Assistant Director: Laurence Willis, Environment

Service Manager: Nigel Marston, Licensing Manager

Lead Officer: Emily McGuinness, Scrutiny Manager

Contact Details: Emily.mcguinness@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462566

1. Purpose of the Report

To present to District Executive the findings of the Scrutiny Task and Finish Group established
to investigate various aspects of South Somerset District Council’s Licensing Service.

2. Forward Plan

This report appeared on the District Executive Forward Plan with an anticipated Committee
date of 3" December 2015.

3. Public Interest

Scrutiny Task and Finish Groups are a way of allowing elected members of South Somerset
District Council to consider policy matters in depth, gathering information and evidence, before
making recommendations to District Executive. This report sets out the work carried out by
such a group of members who looked at two aspects of the Council’s Licensing function.
Firstly, adopting a principle of total cost recovery where possible within the service and
secondly, reviewing the current delegation arrangements with Town Councils.

4. Recommendations
That District Executive:

(1) Recommend to Council that 6 months’ notice be given to both Yeovil and Wincanton
Town Councils, in accordance with the Delegation Agreement, to terminate all delegated
Licensing functions. Upon the expiry of the 6 month period, the relevant Licensing
functions will be carried out by the Licensing team of SSDC.

(2) Note the findings of the Task and Finish Group in relation to the over or under recovery
of fees and charges within the Licensing Service and in particular endorse the principle
of total cost recovery where possible.

(3) Recommend to Council that members lobby via the LGA for Government to reassess all
Statutory fees in relation to Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005.

(4) Note that further work will be carried out by the Licensing Manager and the Financial
Services Team to present an amended set of fees and charges to be recommended via
the budget setting process, prior to inclusion in the budget proposals for 2016/17.

5. Background

A Scrutiny Task and Finish Group was established by South Somerset Council’s Scrutiny
Committee and consisted of the following elect Members:

Page 24



Councillors Martin Wale (Chair), Val Keitch

Jason Baker Tony Lock
Mike Beech David Norris
Gye Dibben

The Task and Finish Group was commissioned to look into 2 specific elements of the
authority’s Licensing Service, namely:
- the potential of introducing a principle of total cost recovery where possible and to
propose amendments to the current fee structure to reflect this ; and
- reviewing the current delegation arrangements that exist between South Somerset
District Council (SSDC), Wincanton Town Council (WTC) and Yeovil Town Council
(YTC).

This report outlines the recommendations of the Task and Finish Group and the evidence
members considered in reaching their recommendations.

In the current financial climate for local authorities, all avenues to maximise income in order to
maintain service standards must be explored — reviewing Licensing fees and charges with a
view to establishing total cost recovery is an important part of this ongoing work.

6. Review methodology

As with all Scrutiny Task and Finish work, members first agreed their Terms of Reference, in
this case, that they would:
- conduct the review as commissioned by the Scrutiny Committee;
- submit regular update reports to the Scrutiny Committee
- Conduct detailed research and analysis in order to make well-evidenced
recommendations to the Executive, Licensing Committee and Council as appropriate;
- To engage members, officers, members of the community and external witnesses in
the review as appropriate.

In addition to these more general Terms of Reference, members agreed the following specific
review Aims and Objectives:

- To fully understand the proposals of the Licensing Service operating on a total cost
recovery basis, to include the legislative framework and ethical implications.

- If the principle of total cost recovery is accepted, then this Task and Finish Group will
aim to make evidence based recommendations to the relevant decision making bodies,
outlining a schedule of fees for the Licensing Service that allows for total cost recovery,
where possible. Members must ensure that the authority has robust evidence to show
the exact cost and the correlation between service costs and the fees charged.

- To better understand the national picture in relation to setting fees for Licensing

Services, such as government guidance and legislation, and to address any issues that
may improve the experience of local authorities through bodies such as the LGA.

Page 25



- To look at other areas of potential income generation such as introducing charges for
pre-application advice and providing a ‘check and send’ service.

- The review will also look to address the recommendations of an Internal Audit report of
the Licensing Service which indicated that the practice of delegating some licensing
functions to Yeovil and Wincanton Town Councils should be reviewed. The review of
this particular element should look to assess if this practice meets the needs and
expectations of South Somerset District Council as well as those of our customers

Members were clear that this review did NOT include looking at the setting of Taxi
Fares — this is an entirely separate issue.

Members of the Task and Finish Group decided to conduct the review in two phases — the first
of which would consider the issue of Licensing fees and charges, the second would investigate
the issue of licensing functions delegated to Town Councils.

Phase One: Establishing a Principle of total cost recovery where possible within
the Licensing Service.

7. Service Context

The cost to the Council of the Licensing Service last financial year is £89.5k and about 21% of
costs within the service are not covered by fees — the ambition of the Service Manager is to
reduce this to between 5 and 10% and how to achieve this is one of the main objectives of this
Task and Finish Group.

Some fees are statutory and were set in 2005 — these fees don’t cover the costs of
administering the service but at present, they can’'t be changed — Local Authorities have been
consulted on these fee levels, but there was a poor response nationally to the consultation and
the Government took this to mean that there was no call to amend the statutory fee levels. The
Local Government Association (LGA) are currently doing some work in this area and a
recommendation of this Task and Finish review is that their findings are reported to the LGA to
support the ongoing lobbying of central government for a more realistic fee structure.

Where fees are not set by a statutory framework, there is some local discretion. However, fees
must only cover costs and there must be no profit or surplus generated. Each regime needs
clear separation.

Members were reminded of the need to be aware of the possibility of legal challenge to any
proposed changes to Licensing fees and charges — any fees generated must accurately reflect
the actual cost of delivering the service, fees should not be set to generate a surplus but if a
surplus is generated, it must be used for service enhancement and not used to cross-
subsidise other services. Consistent generation of a surplus should be reflected in reduced
fees and charges to the customer.

To allow members to make sound evidenced based proposals for an amended fee structure,
the Licensing Manager, working with finance officers have produced a spreadsheet for every

Page 26



licence to show the time taken to process, this data has been collated along with the number
of licences processed. This then shows an hourly rate that can be reflected in the schedule of
fees and charges. The collation of this data formed a vital part of the evidence considered by
the Task and Finish Group and will enable the authority to defend any potential challenges.

8. Total Cost Recovery

Members of the Task and Finish Group were supported by the Licensing Manager in this
element of their work. The first meeting of the process set out the statutory context within
which Licensing Fees and Charges are set.

At the first Task and Finish Group meeting, members established their support for a more
rigorous approach to operating Total Cost Recovery where possible. Based on this, officers
have developed a robust method for the setting of fees.

Across the Licensing regimes, the power to levy a fee is given to the Council by the relevant
legislation. With the exception of the Licensing and Gambling Acts, the Council has discretion
as to the maximum level of fee it may charge, but in all cases, fees must be reasonable and
proportionate to the cost of the processes associated with a licensing scheme. As already
mentioned elsewhere in this report, under no circumstances can the Council use fees to make
a profit or act as an economic deterrent to deter certain business types from operating within
its area.

In its interpretation of the relevant legislation the Council has had regard to the Provision of
Services Regulations 2009 (PSR 2009) and established case law such as R(Hemming and
others) v Westminster Council.

Where locally set fees are not covered by the PSR 2009 (e.g. Taxi licensing) the principles of
the Regulations have still been applied to the fee construction.

9. Method of fee construction
A rational system of apportionment of costs to calculate the fee level for each individual type of
application received and authorisation issued is proposed by the Task and Finish Group. This
system of fee calculation is to be kept under constant review and amended whenever changes
in procedures or processes occur.
The fee construction system contains a combination of four elements:

- Application Processing,

- Consumables,

- Administration,

- Monitoring Compliance.

10. Application Processing

Page 27



Broadly this element of the fee construction is the time taken to process an application from
initial enquiry to issue of the decision. It includes the time taken to complete the administration
tasks of receiving correspondence, updating the records database with application details and
officer actions, processing of payments, production and dispatch of documents including the
notice of the final determination of the application.

The time allocated to the consideration (including any inspections and/or
consultations/negotiations that may be required) and determination of the application by one of
the officers is also reflected in the total cost.

At present no additional cost is allocated to any application that requires determination by a
Committee. This cost element is included within the fee every time there is the physical
submission of an application.

11. Consumables

The cost allocated to this element of the fee represents any specialist materials or equipment
that may be required such as the identification plates for Hackney Carriage & Private Hire
Vehicles.

Not all fees carry a consumables cost as they may not require any specialist materials and all
normal stationary items are already included within the on costs described earlier.

As with Application processing above this cost element makes up part of the fee every time an
application is submitted

12. Administration

This element represents the time and costs allocated year on year to maintenance of the
regime rather than those activities specific to the processing of an application. It is made up of
allocations of time and costs for generic activities as well as the more detailed provision of
advice & guidance to and the processing of complaints from, service users and the
public/partner agencies.

Also included within this element is the time allocated to the review and maintenance of
Council Policies and Officer Guidance (including relevant training for Officers and Members).
Regime wide administration tasks such as fee calculation, website maintenance, servicing
regime specific forums and quality control measures are also taken into account. Where an
authorisation is issued for a period in excess of one year the annual administration element
will be included with the fee levied.

13. Monitoring Compliance
This element comprises of the activities allocated to the monitoring of compliance with any
authorisation issued. It is levied against any valid Licence on an annual basis. It includes

dealing with complaints, pro-active monitoring (including inspections) and joint operations with
partner agencies.

Page 28



In accordance with case law and the Provision of Services Regulations no fee is levied in
respect of enforcement action against unauthorised activities as the Council considers that the
costs of defending appeals in the magistrate’s court or via judicial review can be recovered
through the courts.

With all of the above elements continual training of officers and reviews of processes are
undertaken to ensure that the necessary procedures are completed in as quick a time as
possible without reducing the professionalism and legality of the service

14. Review of fee levels

The Task and Finish Group recommend that the Licensing Manager will review in detail fees
and charges annually to ensure that they remain reasonable and proportionate. All proposed
fee levels are scrutinised by Members through the demaocratic process before adoption.

15. Over or Under Recovery

In all cases where the Council has discretion over fee levels the Council seeks to set fees to
achieve full cost recovery. Should an over or under recovery be identified the Council will
redress the imbalance through future fee setting. Timescales for introducing alterations to fee
levels in such circumstances will be set, where possible to minimise impact upon businesses
and or local taxpayers.

16. SSDC Statutory Fees.

Type of Application Current Statutory | Cost to SSDC Shortfall per
Fee application

Premise Licence Grant 190.00 497.25 -307.25
Premise Licence Variation 190.00 425.04 -235.04
Minor Variation 89.00 200.11 -111.11
Replacement Licence 10.50 25.41 -14.91
Change of Name/Address 10.50 29.74 -19.24
Vary DPS 23.00 84.50 -61.50
Transfer 23.00 84.50 -61.50
Personal Licence Grant 37.00 58.28 -21.28
Change of Address 10.50 24.09 -13.59
Temporary Event Notice 21.00 66.03 -45.03
Gambling Grant 1275.00 563.34 711.66
Gambling Variation 1275.00 301.20 973.80
Gambling Transfer 1020.00 61.94 958.06
Gambling Reinstatement 1020.00 61.94 958.06
Machine Notification 50.00 119.73 -69.73
Gambling Permit 150.00 262.14 -112.14

Page 29




Type of Application

Current Statutory
Fee

Cost to SSDC

Shortfall per
application

Society Lottery

40.00

119.73

-79.73

17. SSDC Discretionary Fees

Type of Application Current Fee Cost to SSDC Shortfall per
application
Taxi Driver 1 Year 58.00 160.00 -102.00
Taxi Driver 3 Year 80.00 258.00 -178.00
HC Vehicle 225.00 245.00 -25.00
Private Hire Vehicle 225.00 220.00 5.00
PH Operator (3 yr) (now 5yr) | 85.00 820.00 -735.00
Animal Boarding 110.00 170.00 -60.00
Home Boarding 75.00 170.00 -95.00
Pet Shops 110.00 200.00 -90.00
Dangerous Wild Animals 110.00 245.00 -135.00
Street Trading Casual 13.00 57.00 -44.00
Street Trading Permanent 1600.00 1357.00 243.00
Road Closure 55.00 211.92 -156.92
Scrap Metal Dealer 800.00 700.00 100.00
Scrap Metal Collector 660.00 660.00 0.00
Skin Piercing - Premise 95.00 120.00 -25.00
Skin Piercing - Personal 95.00 120.00 -25.00

18. Conclusions on current fee levels

The Statutory Fees (those set by Government) are not adequate to cover the Council’s costs
in dealing with those applications and members should be recommended to lobby, through the
LGA ,to request a reassessment of all Statutory Fees in relation to Licensing.

Page 30



Phase Two - Licensing Functions Delegated to Town Councils.
19. Delegated Arrangements

The existing delegation arrangements with Wincanton and Yeovil Town Councils were last
reviewed in 2005. Currently Wincanton and Yeovil Town Councils have delegated Licensing
Arrangements — Wincanton have a delegated Taxi Licensing function whilst Yeovil Town
Council have delegated authority for Taxis, Street Collections, house to house collections and
Street Trading.

In April 2014 an Internal Audit report was produced by the South West Audit Partnership into
Town Council Licensing — that review recommended that the agreement of delegation be
reviewed to ensure that it is fit for purpose and cost effective to still delegate licensing
functions. The Task and Finish Group used this as the basis for their work.

South Somerset District Council is the only authority in the country to delegate Licensing
functions to Town Councils. When these arrangements were introduced, the Local
Government landscape was very different to today and whilst members remain committed to
the principles of empowered local communities, they are ever mindful of the need to deliver
the best value for money to all residents.

Members of the Task and Finish Group wanted to hear the views of the two Town Councils
before making any recommendations and so meetings were arranged with the Clerks of both
authorities. Each Clerk was asked to provide the same information and full notes of the
meetings can be found at Appendix 2 to this report. Members of the Task and Finish Group
were very grateful to the Clerks for sparing the time to support this review.

Based on the information gathered members of the Task and Finish Group made the following
conclusions:

20. Yeovil Town Council

Last financial year, their income figure for Taxi Licensing was £5,902.50 with a stated
expenditure of £1,251. Street Trading income was £14,500. The interim Town Clerk was
unable to provide further detail on expenditure for Street Trading.

Staff time administering the Licensing function at was estimated to be 500 hours p.a. — 50-
60% of time. SSDC’s Licensing Manager’s view is that a figure of 10 hours a week for the
number of licenses processed seemed a little high.

The Yeovil Town Council Clerk expressed no concerns about ceasing the delegated Taxi
Licensing arrangements but expressed a preference to retain the Street Trading function citing
potential impact on the budget. Members of the Task and Finish Group noted this, but were
mindful of the fact that there should be no budgetary impact in ceasing the delegation
arrangements as there can be no surplus generated through Licensing or cross subsidising.

21. Wincanton Town Council

Page 31



Currently there are 34 drivers licensed by Wincanton Town Council (2 of which will not be
renewing in 2016), there are 20 Hackney Carriage vehicles and 10 Private Hire vehicles. For
the period April 2014 — March 2015 income was stated as being £10,167.50 with an
expenditure of £1,977. The Deputy Town Clerk, who has responsibility for Licensing, spends
on average 4.38 hours per week on Licensing matters — 23% of her time.

22. Issues

Members were informed that there would be no staffing implications to either of the Town
Councils should the delegated Licensing arrangements cease — this was confirmed by both
Clerks when asked.

Wincanton Town Council expressed a strong preference for retaining the current delegation
arrangements, citing high levels of customer satisfaction and the significant distance taxi
drivers would be expected to travel from Wincanton to Yeovil should the arrangements end.
The Task and Finish group noted that SSDC’s Area East office at Churchfields in Wincanton is
open on weekdays from 9.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. Informal discussions with the largest private
hire firm based in Wincanton indicated no serious concerns about dealing directly with SSDC
via the Churchfields office or in Yeovil — all Taxi inspections are carried out in Yeovil anyway.

Members of the Task and Finish Group felt very strongly that any concerns about potential
loss of income could not be taken into consideration as Licensing income can only be spent on
administering the licensing function.

Members of the Task and Finish Group also considered the implications for any amendments
to the delegation arrangements on South Somerset District Council’'s own Licensing Function,
such considerations focused mainly on enforcement.

Fees taken by both Yeovil Town Council and Wincanton Town Council include an element for
enforcement and compliance. YTC undertake some enforcement, however they no longer
have a delegated enforcement officer, so SSDC pick up enforcement work on their behalf.
There is currently no recharge made for this provision. WTC undertake no enforcement, all
WTC enforcement is picked up by SSDC. No recharge is made for this provision.

If delegation arrangements ceased, the additional income returned to SSDC would be
estimated to be approx. £27,000 which could be used to part fund a much needed additional
Enforcement Officer post at a cost of approx. £35,000 (to include on-costs)

23. Conclusions regarding delegated arrangements

Members appreciated the points raised by both Town Councils relating to retaining some or all
elements of the current delegation arrangements, especially around providing services within
local communities. However, based on the financial evidence considered and the indication
given by customers that there would be limited, if any, change to customer satisfaction,
members of the Task and Finish Group agreed to recommend that ALL delegated licensing
functions should cease, with both Town Councils being given the required notice
period of 6 months as soon as afinal decision has been taken by full Council.

Page 32



Members of the Task and Finish Group felt that this was the most appropriate decision for the
future provision of a consistent and compliant licensing service for all residents of South
Somerset.

Members of the Task and Finish Group wish to thank Nigel Marston for the support, advice
and guidance he has provided members with during this review.

24. Financial Implications

The proposed amendments to the fees and charges applied within the Licensing Service will
be included in the budget papers for 2016/17 where all financial implications will be fully
explored. The Fees and Charges Register will need to be amended (if approved) to
incorporate the appropriate Licence charges.

In relation to the matter of ceasing the current delegation arrangements with Wincanton and
Yeovil Town Councils, it is estimated this will generate approximately £27,000 of additional
income for SSDC, if realised, this will be contribute to additional enforcement capacity within
the team. Any proposals for additional staff will be considered through the appropriate
channels, with due regard to the principles of avoiding cross subsidisation or achieving a
surplus.

25. Risk Matrix

Risk Profile before officer recommendations

10edw|

Likelihood
_—

Risk Profile after officer recommendations

10edw|

CpP
CY

Likelihood
_—

Page 33



Key

Categories Colours (for further detail please refer to Risk
management strategy)

R = Reputation Red = High impact and high probability

CpP = Corporate Plan Priorities Orange = Major impact and major probability

CP = Community Priorities Yellow =  Moderate impact and moderate probability
Ccy = Capacity Green = Minor impact and minor probability

F = Financial Blue = Insignificant impact and insignificant

probability

26. Council Plan Implications

Protect community health with regular safety inspections of food outlets, licensed premises,
taxis and other commercial businesses.

27. Carbon Emissions and Climate Change Implications
None

28. Equality and Diversity Implications

None — Assessment completed

29. Privacy Impact Assessment

None required

30. Background Papers

Notes of meetings with Yeovil and Wincanton Town Clerks (attached).

Page 34



Appendix A

Notes of Meeting with John Furze, Locum Town Clerk, Yeovil Town
Council re: Delegation of Taxi Licensing to Town Councils

Wednesday 23" September 2015 — 12.00 p.m.

Present: John Furze — Town Clerk
Nigel Marston — Licensing Manager, SSDC

Emily McGuinness — Scrutiny Manager SSDC

- Emily McGuinness explained the purpose of the meeting — in 2014 South West Audit
Partnership conducted an audit of Town Council Licensing — one of the
recommendations from this report was that the current delegation arrangements with
Yeovil and Wincanton Town Councils be reviewed by SSDC to ensure the
arrangements remain fit for purpose for all parties involved. Consequently, Officers of
Wincanton Town Council had been asked for an informal meeting to provide factual
information to support such a review.

- A Scrutiny Task and Finish Group looking at the wider issue of Licensing Fees would
be looking at this matter and would make recommendations to the appropriate
member level decision making body in due course. It was stressed that at this stage,
SSDC were on a ‘fact finding’ exercise — looking to ensure that members are in
possession of all relevant facts before taking any decisions about future service
delivery options.

- It was stressed that no complaints had been received about current service provision
but that the arrangements were last reviewed in 2005 and we had to be sure that
arrangements represent the best value for taxpayers’ money.

- In advance of the meeting, Yeovil Town Council had been asked to provide some
additional information relating to income and expenditure figures — this information
was tabled at the meeting as is as follows:

o In the last financial year Yeovil Town Council Renewed 13 Taxi Driver
Licences, 18 Taxi Vehicle Licenses, 1 Private Hire Vehicle Licence, 95 Street
Trading Licenses, 53 Charitable Collections (Street Collections) and 8
Charitable Collections (door to door)

o Income from Driver licensing was £1,300

o Income from vehicle licensing was £400

o Staff time administering the Licensing function at YTC is estimated to be 500
hours p.a. which equates to about 50-60% of an officer’s time.

- The office opening hours at Yeovil Town Council are Monday — Thursday 8.30 a.m. —
4.30 p.m. and Friday 8.40 a.m. — 4.00 p.m.

- Taxi Drivers are able to apply on-line for all Licenses.

Page 35



- The Clerk was of the opinion that if Taxi Licensing was centralised and the current
delegation arrangements ended there would be little or no impact — the staff currently
working on Licensing duties could easily be redeployed — due to physical office
spaces, it’s difficult to expand team numbers but there were plenty of other tasks to
do. He went on to say that it seemed sensible to him to centralise Taxi Licensing as it
was a generic service that was applied in the same way across the whole district with
no scope for local flavour — he could see no logical reason for the Town Council
retaining the function.

- However, he did feel there was a strong case for the Town Council to retain
responsibility for Licensing of Street Trading as this was a service particular to Yeovil
and could have a very visible impact on the Town Centre ( as well as generating
income) delegating this function to the Town Council could be seen as ‘localism in
action’.

At the end of the meeting, an undertaken was given to keep the Clerk updated on the
progress of the review and that as the Delegation agreement stated that 6 months notice
was required by either party to end the agreement, every effort would be made to have
concluded this work in time for the 2016/17 budget setting process.

It was explained that any final decision on future arrangements would be made by SSDC
elected members in line with the Constitution (clarification was sought on whether any
final decision would be taken by Council or District Executive).

Page 36



Notes of Meeting with Wincanton Town Council re: Delegation of
Taxi Licensing to Town Councils

Wednesday 23" September 2015 — 9.30 a.m. to 10.00 a.m.

Present: Sam Atherton — Town Clerk
Muriel Cairns - Deputy Town Clerk
Councillor Colin Winder — Town Councillor
Councillor Howard Ellard — Town Councillor
Nigel Marston — Licensing Manager, SSDC

Emily McGuinness — Scrutiny Manager SSDC

- Emily McGuinness explained the purpose of the meeting — in 2014 South West Audit
Partnership conducted an audit of Town Council Licensing — one of the
recommendations from this report was that the current delegation arrangements with
Yeovil and Wincanton Town Councils be reviewed by SSDC to ensure the
arrangements remain fit for purpose for all parties involved. Consequently, Officers of
Wincanton Town Council had been asked for an informal meeting to provide factual
information to support such a review.

- A Scrutiny Task and Finish Group looking at the wider issue of Licensing Fees would
be looking at this matter and would make recommendations to the appropriate
member level decision making body in due course. It was stressed that at this stage,
SSDC were on a ‘fact finding’ exercise — looking to ensure that members are in
possession of all relevant facts before taking any decisions about future service
delivery options.

- It was stressed that no complaints had been received about current service provision
but that the arrangements were last reviewed in 2005 and we had to be sure that
arrangements represent the best value for taxpayers’ money.

- In advance of the meeting, Wincanton Town Council had been asked to provide
some additional information relating to income and expenditure figures — this
information was tabled at the meeting as is attached to these notes.

- Clarification was sought as to how Wincanton Town Council could demonstrate that
the Licensing Income they report was used to fund Licensing activities. It was noted
that the legislation was very clear that Licensing income cannot be used to cross-
subsidise other services or activities. Muriel and Sam stated that no additional staff
had been appointed to carry out Licensing work but that Muriel worked additional
hours. The amount of her time spent on Licensing work varied from week to week
and at present, her time is not accurately recorded. It was agreed that in order to
show how Licensing Income was used and to demonstrate the impact should the

Page 37



current delegation arrangements cease, it would be beneficial for this information to
be available.

- The officers and members of Wincanton Town Council felt that they offer a good face
to face service for local taxi drivers who would otherwise have to face a 35 mile trip to
Yeovil. Muriel offered an ‘above and beyond’ personal service that was appreciated
by service users — to the extent that apparently drivers visit Muriel at home to collect
plates outside of office hours.

- Wincanton Town Council do not have a dedicated Licensing back office system for
handling Licensing administration, but they do have separate spreadsheets and
databases with all information securely stored.

- When asked what the impact on Wincanton Town Council would be if the delegation
arrangements were ended, Colin Winder said it would represent a loss of £8,000 pa
in income for the Town Council. Due to the issues of recording the Deputy Clerk’s
licensing duties, it was not clear what the impact on staffing would be.

- There was currently no facility for the on-line completion of the Licensing applications
at Wincanton Town Council — but this was not a service which has been requested
by Taxi Drivers. There was a link to the SSDC website and on-line forms on the
Wincanton Town Council Website. The Clerk did say this was something they could
look into if there was a demand.

- Clir Ellard asked what the view of SSDC would be if proposals to delegate additional
licensing functions to the Town Council came forward. It was explained that SSDC
were operating in a very different financial climate to 10 years ago when the current
delegation arrangements were introduced, and that whilst SSDC remained
committed to empowering local communities where possible, the onus is now very
much more on sound business cases and the best use of public money.
Reassurance was given though that any full costed proposal would be given due
consideration.

At the end of the meeting, an undertaken was given to keep the Clerk updated on the
progress of the review. It was explained that any final decision on future arrangements
would be made by SSDC elected members in line with the Constitution (clarification was
sought on whether any final decision would be taken by Council or District Executive).

Representatives of Wincanton Town Council were thanked for their time.

Page 38



Agenda Item 10

Yeovil Innovation Centre - Business Plan and Update Report

Executive Portfolio Holder:  Jo Roundell Greene, Environment and Economic Development

Strategic Director: Rina Singh, Place and Performance

Assistant Director Martin Woods, Economy

Lead Officer: David Julian Economic Development Manager
Contact Details: david.julian@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462279

1. Purpose of the Report

This report seeks the approval of the District Executive Committee for SSDC to formally
adopt the new Yeovil Innovation Centre (YIC) Business Plan 2015- 2020 and seeks
approval for SSDC to continue as Operator at the Centre. The report also provides an
update on the performance of YIC.

2. Public Interest

YIC is run by South Somerset District Council on behalf of the three funding partners. The
partners are: the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) (who inherited the contingent
assets of the former South West Regional Development Agency in 2011), Somerset
County Council and South Somerset District Council.

The Business Plan (that is included as an appendix to this report) sets out the aims and
objectives of the Centre and sets targets and outputs against which the future
performance of YIC may be measured.

This report seeks three resolutions from the District Executive Committee relating to the
operation of YIC and these are:

3. Recommendations
It is recommended that the District Executive resolves to:
1. Note the detail provided on the performance of Yeovil Innovation Centre

2. Approve the Yeovil Innovation Centre (YIC) Business Plan for 2015-20 (attached
as Appendix A)

3. Agree a continued period of operation of YIC by SSDC (as described in paragraph
5.2)

4. Background

The SSDC District Executive Report in June 2013 contained a detailed background to the
YIC operating arrangements 2008 — 2013 and outlined the future operating arrangements
for YIC. Prior to the 2013 report, SSDC had undertaken the role and function of Operator
since 2008/09 (as set out in the terms of the YIC Partnering Agreement) following the
failure of the Funding Partners to attract and procure a commercial Operator for the
project.

In June 2012 the YIC Steering Board had recommended that SSDC remain as the

Operator of YIC until March 2016 (in the first instance). The HCA and SCC subsequently
agreed not to take their share of profits from the project until SSDC recover their full staff

Page 39


mailto:david.julian@southsomerset.gov.uk

costs and other service charges that had been incurred in the early years of the operation
of YIC.

In June 2013 SSDCs District Executive resolved (subject to SCC and The HCA formally
agreeing a deed of variation relating to the treatment of costs at YIC) that:

e The new operating arrangements with SSDC continuing as temporary operator
would continue until 31* March 2016 in the first instance. Prior to this date
operating arrangements would be formally reviewed and a management options
report would be prepared.

e It was also noted that HCA and SCC would allow SSDC to keep any operating
financial surplus from the centre to offset any revenues lost in the first four years of
the operation.

The formal Deed of Variation was completed and signed by the three funding partners in
2013. The partners did not place any restriction on the length of time that SSDC should
remain as the Operator, although clearly the ability to regularly review the position is
beneficial to all parties concerned. Effectively the Deed of Variation agreed that ‘SSDC be
allowed sufficient time as Operator to recover the historic operating costs. It has been
agreed by the Funding Partners that SSDC will remain as operator until these costs are
recovered’.

5. Report
5.1 Operational Performance of YIC

Prior to the drafting of the new Business Plan, performance was measured against the
projections set out in the original project feasibility studies. It was always recognised that
it would take several years for the tenant occupancy levels at YIC to firstly, generate a
profit (at around 65% occupancy) and secondly, to reach a stable and higher rate of
continued occupancy (of approx. 85%).

Because of the entry and exit criteria for tenants (as set out in the Business Plan) there
will always be a churn of tenants at YIC as businesses enter, grow and then move. For
budgeting purposes we have never assumed an occupancy rate of greater than 85% at
the centre although in reality higher occupancy rates can (and currently are) being
achieved.

The table on page 4 of the Business Plan shows the historic uptake of office space. In the
first year of operation it was approximately 25%. It reached its break-even goal of approx.
65% in 2012/13 and has progressed to a level of approx. 95% by October 2015. The
ongoing churn of tenants created by the entry and exit policies will mean that this
unexpected high level is unlikely to be sustained for a long period. The occupancy figures
do however give us the confidence that an occupancy rate of 85% is both attainable and
sustainable.

The Business Plan at Appendix 1 sets out the objectives agreed by the Funding Partners
in 2015. These are set out for the six year period 2014 — 2020 but it is intended that the
objectives are revisited and their on-going relevance be ascertained as part of an annual
review process.

Of the objectives for 2014/15, all targets were either met or exceeded with the exception
of output 7 (jobs created cumulatively at YIC). Our cumulative total for this output is

Page 40



marginally below target and is partly due to a number of businesses at YIC whose growth
is either static or may have reached the limit of their growth potential. Not all businesses
can be in continual growth mode. The cumulative number of jobs created at YIC stands at
112 as opposed to the target of 124. Output 7 will remain as a measurable output for the
duration of the business plan, but will be reviewed beyond that point if it represents an
unrealistic target.

Additionally no tenant satisfaction survey was carried out in 2014/15, but a survey is
currently underway (November 2015) for 2015/16 and will be conducted annually from
here on. Initial feedback from this survey is indicating a satisfaction level of greater than
65% for the period 2016/17.

In its 7 years of operation YIC has enjoyed notable success extending beyond the strong
occupancy rate. The entry criteria has been geared towards attracting businesses from
the high-tech and innovative sectors. As of November 2015 the approximate breakdown
of businesses at YIC by sector include: Aerospace 28%, High Tech 28%, Service Provider
31% Media and Communication 6% Education 6%

Examples of noteworthy success include: Perspicuity, who achieved Microsoft Gold
Partner Status and also secured a runner-up Apprentice of the Year in 2013, Invirt Reality
who have developed high resolution virtual reality 3 dimensional computer graphics for
use in computer programming; AIM Norway who are a Norwegian Aerospace Company
trialling the Yeovil Aerospace Market and Geek Central, a local website design company
who have gone from being Virtual Tenants at YIC to a larger company now occupying
state-of the-art-anchor tenancy offices. There are many such examples of new
companies at YIC who are now making their mark on the high-tech and aerospace
sectors.

There are now 150 people working at the centre for 32 different businesses.
5.2 SSDC'’s continued role as operator at YIC

In 2013 the District Executive Committee asked for an options report for the future
operation of the centre to be prepared before 31* March 2016. It should be remembered
that at that stage the YIC was just beginning to return a financial profit and the mid and
long term futures were viewed with caution.

Since 2013 the level of profit has increased in line with a greater occupancy and these
higher levels of return together with greater levels of confidence are now being sustained.
The letting of the majority of the Anchor Tenant areas has also helped our financial
certainty.

Financial figures for year ending March 2015 showed an operating profit of £38k with
projections for the years to 2020 shown within the Business Plan. The financial forecasts
within the Business Plan project an 85% occupancy rate so that we maintain a prudent
baseline for our forecasting.

In 2013 the Partnering Agreement was varied by the partner’'s mutual consent in favour of
SSDC retaining all operational profits until the revenue losses of the early years were
recovered. The recovery rate of the full revenue costs for SSDC shows that the recovery
period is likely to extend beyond the timeframe of this Business Plan.

There are two realistic options for the future operation of YIC:

Page 41



1. SSDC can continue to run the centre and fully recover its early operating
losses.
2. The operation can be put out to tender to procure a private operator.

By continuing as Operator SSDC will:
e Be able to recover all earlier revenue losses incurred.
e Ensure that the service standards that have underpinned the success of YIC are

continued.

By putting the operation out to tender through a competitive bidding process SSDC would

Reduce the certainty of recovering all earlier revenue losses.

e Potentially diminish the level of service previously enjoyed.

o Most likely result in diminished profits for the partners. Whilst making a profit was
never the paramount aim of YIC, the ability to recover the full costs of the
operation in the early years and to re-invest in the local economy remains an
important objective.

¢ Not necessarily be able to guarantee the procurement of a suitable operator. The

previous attempts of 2008 and 2010 (the ERDF process) both ultimately failed and

proved to have been extremely time-consuming and costly.

The ability to review the position of the Operator remains important and the Business Plan
now recommends that an option to review is considered by the Funding Partners by
December 2016.

5.3 YIC Business Plan 2015-2020

The Business Plan was prepared jointly by officers of SSDC, SCC and the HCA. The
process by which a succinct document was produced and deemed acceptable to each of
the funding partners proved to be a lengthy process.

The Business Plan (2015-2020) now forms Appendix 1 of his report. In July 2015 the
HCA agreed to leave the final drafting of the plan to SSDC and SCC, particularly as the
HCAs interest at YIC is largely limited to their contingent asset (a covenant on the land)
rather than the operation of YIC itself. The drafting of the plan was completed by SSDC
and SCC in September 2015 and the plan was formally approved by SCC in October
2015.

5.4 The Future

The success of the Innovation Centre and the growing confidence in its ability to deliver
against its objectives has resulted in plans for a second phase in the development of YIC.
SSDCs Infrastructure Programme has prioritised a significant extension to the current
building. This second phase of the YIC project is included in the Somerset Growth Plan
and Expressions of Interest for funding have been submitted to both the Growth Deal 2
and Growth Deal 3 LEP funding programmes.

6. Financial Implications
Since 2013 YIC has shown a substantially improving financial situation with profits

improving on a year on year basis. Importantly in 2013 our partners agreed that SSDC
will recover all outstanding revenue before the project partnership takes shares on excess

Page 42



profit made. The revenue projection at 6.1 in the Business Plan forecasts the rate of costs
recovery for the period to 2020.

In 2014/15 the Centre made a net profit of £38,198 as reported through budget
monitoring. Budget forecasts for 2015/16 indicate a likely profit of £28,489 - this lower
figure is due to SSDC landlord contributions to alterations to the upper anchor tenancy
space. The resulting increased rental level and reduced commitment to business rates on
the large empty office dramatically increases the income from 2016 and onwards. For
2016/17 and beyond, YIC forms part of the income generating activities of the District
Council.

7. Risk

There are five areas of financial risk identified that could affect the viability of this project
where potential mitigation could be achieved.

Risk Level of Mitigation measures Residual level of
Identified Risk Risk
Management Low Adhering to current staffing Low
Costs structure with review at point of
Operator Review
Business Medium Apply for small business rates relief | Medium/Low
Rates where and whilst possible. Maintain
high occupancy rates of units
Retaining Medium Marketing campaign as necessary | Medium/ Low
anchor tenants with reasonable flexibility around
lease negotiations
Maintaining Medium Sliding scale on tenant rentals over | Low
and increasing duration of occupation. Annual
rental levels review of market rental levels with
adjustments as necessary
Operator Low SSDC to remain as operator with Low
default first review recommended at
December 2016

Risk Analysis

This risk analysis is based on an assumption that the recommendations made in this
report are approved.

10RAW|

Likelihood

Page 43




Key

Categories Colours (for further detail please refer to Risk
management strategy)

R = Reputation Red = High impact and high probability
F = Financial Orange =  Major impact and major probability
O = Operational Yellow =  Moderate impact and moderate
CpP = Corporate Plan probability

Priorities Green = Minor impact and minor probability
CP = Community Priorities Blue = Insignificant impact and insignificant

probability

8. Corporate Priority Implications

The operation of YIC offers a mainstay of the Council Plan 2012-15 (Focus 1-Jobs) by
helping ‘create and support new businesses through the YIC’ and by ‘providing targeted
support for start-ups and small businesses and those with the aspiration to expand’.

The Successful operation of YIC is also a priority of the SSDC Economic Development
Strategy 2012-15 and the SSDC Economic Development Service Plan 2012-15

9. Carbon Emissions and Climate Change Implications
None directly associated with this report
10. Equality and Diversity Implications
None directly associated with this report
11. Background Papers
¢ Yeovil Innovation Centre - Future Operating Arrangements — District Executive
Report (June 2013)
e Council Plan 2012-15

e Economic Development Strategy 2012-15
Appendix: Yeovil Innovation Centre Business Plan 2015-2020

Page 44



Business Plan
2015-2020

S Yeovil innovation centre
space to PROSPER

A Partnership Project

Page 45



3.1

3.1.1
3.1.2
3.1.3
3.1.4
3.1.5

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7

5.1
5.2
5.3

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4

Appendices

Appendix 1

Contents

Title

Introduction

Current Position
Governance

Roles and responsibilities
The Funding Partners
Advisory Group

The Operator

Operating Model
Business Support

Next Steps

Financial Stability
Business Support Services
Relationship Development

Removing Barriers to Development

Rental Levels
Entry Criteria
Exit Strategy

Performance
Outcomes

Outputs

Performance Measures

Financial Plan
Revenue Projection
Maintenance Schedule
Profit and Loss Sharing
Risk Assessment

Future Strategy

SWOT Analysis

Page 46

Page

~N o oo ook WWw

© 00 00 00 N ~N NN

10
11
12

12
12
13
13
13

14

15



1. Introduction

The funding partners for Yeovil Innovation Centre are Somerset County Council, South
Somerset District Council and the Homes and Communities Agency.

Yeovil Innovation Centre was officially opened in the spring of 2009 when South Somerset
District Council (SSDC) became the operator by default when the procurement of an
independent operator was unsuccessful due to the prevailing national economic climate at
that time. The funding partners have agreed that SSDC should continue to operate the
Centre until it has recovered the revenue losses occurred in the initial years of operation.

The project has been operational for five years and operates at a profit. In 2013/14 a net
profit of £34,017 was generated.

This business plan was informed by the SWOT analysis incorporating the views of operating
staff, tenants and the two external audits that have been undertaken to review the practice
and processes of the Centre. The key points are recorded in Appendix 1.

The Visionary Statement of the YIC is as follows:

Yeovil Innovation Centre exists to provide a dynamic and supportive incubation
environment to accelerate the growth of ambitious, innovative firms in the South West
region.

The fundamental principles of the innovation centre are:

¢ Flexible office space

e On-site support from a trained Centre team

e High speed broadband and excellent telephony

¢ Arange of conference and meeting rooms

e Access to networking and collaboration opportunities

Yeovil Innovation Centre provides early stage companies in high tech, knowledge-based,
and aerospace sectors with basic business services and flexible accommodation. In order
for us to build on our work with these high-value business sectors, it is our intention to
refocus on the appropriate levels of business support that high growth companies need.
Yeovil is at the heart of the aerospace cluster and YIC recognises the important and pivotal
role that it can play in helping develop emerging businesses both within this and other
innovative sectors.

2. Current Position

One of the key components underpinning the financial stability of the project is the number of
tenants occupying the Centre. The Centre has seen the level of tenancy expand to
approximately 80% in terms of floor-space occupancy and, as predicted in the feasibility
study, this level of occupancy has created a profit-making and viable scenario.

Page 47



The take-up of rented units at the Innovation Centre has been as follows:

Date Number of Units occupied
2009 9
2010 14
2011 20
2012 25
2013 28
2014 30
2015 34

In this time there has been a natural turn-over of tenants, with those who have left the
Centre expanding their companies and choosing to relocate elsewhere. Only three tenants
have moved to reduce the scale of their operation. In addition there are ‘virtual’ tenants who
use our front-of-house services whilst establishing their start-up businesses.

The ground floor anchor unit was let in 2010 on a ten year lease with break clauses at 3, 5
and 7 years. This tenancy has given considerable financial security to the Centre’s operation
and this security will be further enhanced when the second anchor tenancy space is let. The
Innovation Centre has approximately 7000 sq. ft. of space designated for Anchor Tenants.
Of this approx. 4500 sq. ft. is currently let.

The Centre returns a financial profit at around 65% of floor-space occupancy. In 2015 with
one of the anchor tenant areas let and 34 start-up units let, the Centre is operating at around
80 % occupancy thus generating an overall net profit. Greater occupancy levels will generate
higher revenue and profit for the Centre.

3. Governance

The Operator will report to the Funding Partners against an evaluation scheme based on the
agreed project outputs. The funding partners will agree the financial and operational
decisions for the Centre.

Under the terms of the Partnering Agreement, SSDC became Operator by default. The
Board and the Funding Partners agreed that SSDC be allowed sufficient time as Operator to
recover the historic operating costs. It has been agreed by the Funding Partners that SSDC
will remain as operator until these costs are recovered.

The current Board will be replaced and an Advisory Group will be established to provide the
funding partners with strategic advice and guidance.

The Operator reports to the funding partners against an agreed monitoring and evaluation
schedule.

Page 48



3.1 Roles and responsibilities
3.1.1 The Funding partners

The existing legal Partnership Agreement between the funding partners sets out the terms,
conditions and responsibilities of each of the funding partners.

The funding partners will meet quarterly to review the financial and operational performance
against agreed Key Performance Indicators. The Operator will ensure that the funding
partners receive operational and financial progress reports at least 1 week in advance of the
partnership meetings.

3.1.2 Advisory Group

An Advisory Group will be established to include stakeholder representation, including but
not limited to representatives from the Heart of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership
(“HotSWLEP), FE/HE institutions, and private sector businesses such as AgustaWestland.
The members of the Advisory Group will help to increase the credibility of the Centre;
achieve industry buy-inf/ownership of the vision, aims and objectives of the Centre; provide
strategic advice on the operation of the Centre based on their expertise and experience. A
strong Advisory Group will also support funding partners to help influence regional/national
and local policies; share knowledge and examples of best practice; and help provide
links/tap into intelligence about business support schemes, such as access to finance,
funding opportunities, workshops to improve performance, growth hub and supply chain
development opportunities. Engaging with stakeholders will also help to raise the profile of
the Centre which is not currently as well-known as other innovation Centres in the region
and attract high growth, innovative business tenants. A higher profile and credibility will also
help to secure funding opportunities for future development of the Centre.

A refreshed Terms of Reference will be produced.

3.1.3 The Operator

The role of the operator is to provide a facility management service for the Centre; market
and promote the Centre to attract tenants; maximise the offering for tenants and broker-in
business support services to meet the business improvement, development and growth
needs of tenants and the wider business community.

The Operator should also make links with other innovation Centres in the South West to
exchange best practice; and learn where expertise and opportunities exist in other Centres
in Somerset and the region that can be accessed for the benefit of the Yeovil Innovation
Centre tenants.

The Operator will:

o |dentify ways for the innovation Centre to act as a catalyst for economic
development.

Page 49



3.14

Market and promote the Centre. An annual marketing plan will be prepared and
agreed by the funding partners Provide flexible accommodation to support
successive stages of tenants development

Provide financial reports and other information as requested by the funding partners.
Act as secretariat to the Advisory Group.

Identify and secure funding for provision of specialist services where possible.
Provide an induction to new tenants re the facilities and technical services provided
at the Centre.

The assessment and vetting of prospective tenants.

On-going administration of tenancies and front of house support services.

In-house provision of some business advice for the Centre and the wider start-up
community.

Develop linkages with relevant knowledge bases including university and research
establishments.

Provide networking opportunities to enable businesses to learn from and do business
with each other.

Creation of links between finance and investment ready companies

Operating Model

The operator has developed a working model and operating practices for the efficient and
effective means of managing the Centre. This deployment of resource is a key factor to the
success of the project.

The staffing structure from 2014 is set out below and from SSDCs perspective is viewed as
being an optimum level of staffing to enable the project objectives to be met efficiently and
effectively. This view is based on the experience gained as operator for the last five years

Economic Development: YIC Staff Structure

————— Work Support

—  Line Management

Page 50



3.1.5 Business Support
The Business Support that the Operator will provide shall include:

e Support in preparation of viable business plans.

¢ On-going support and advice on access to sources of finance and other financial issues.

e Access to expert advice and guidance on legal, patent and intellectual property rights
issues.

¢ Mentoring should include support to overcome the barriers to becoming established in
the market, such as introductions to key clients, help in negotiating contracts, or where
possible, securing funding for products.

e Develop stronger links with Universities and other Innovation Centres, to learn from their
best practice, ensure that there is cross-fertilisation of knowledge of the YIC, access and
support to and from academic research facilities and other like-minded IC companies.

e Supporting clients in further opportunities to network with like-minded businesses,
entrepreneurs and companies in similar fields.

e Offer a more detailed advisory service on the various streams of grant funding available,

4. Next steps

4.1 Financial stability

There will always be a profit level ‘ceiling’ associated with the Centre. This is defined largely
by the amount of available tenancy space and partly by the additional operations such as
conferencing. The maximum occupancy level is never likely to exceed 90% and for
forecasting purposes a maximum level of 85% occupancy should be assumed to allow for
tenant turnover. On the current growth trajectory, 85% occupancy rates will be achieved by
2015.

The Operator will provide the funding partners with quarterly financial reports that set out the
operating costs for the Centre, income generated and repayment to SSDC of early years
operating losses,

4.2 Business support services

The Operator will continue to deliver a range of generic business support and to broker more
tailored and specialist business support services as outlined above.

4.3 Relationship development

The Operator will develop stronger linkages with higher education establishments, other
innovation Centres, and relevant sector specific specialists; and where appropriate the
Strategy Board will support the Operator in making linkages and developing relationships.
The Funding Partners will produce a Development Plan for the next three years as a
separate document.

Page 51



4.4 Removing barriers to development

Reviewing the Business Plan has highlighted the need to review some of the criteria that
currently defines the Centre and its operation. These include a review of:

e the role and composition of the Advisory Group
e the sectors from which prospective tenants can be drawn
e the tenants exit strategy

4.5 Reviewing Rental Levels
Current rental levels and service charges will be reviewed to reflect current market values.

Currently, rental and service charges are packaged together as the ‘one-price covers most
costs’ approach.

The Operator will be empowered to negotiate rental and service charges in exceptional
circumstances, such as attracting an anchor tenant.

4.6 Entry Criteria:

Entry criteria had originally been based on the target sectors as previously identified by the
South West Regional Development Agency. At this stage the criteria will be widened but will
maintain the central tenor of innovation. It is intended that this position will be reviewed again
in 2018 at the earliest, or at the latest in the next review of the business plan.

If a tenant’s ability to match the entry criteria is in doubt, then the matter will be referred to
the Funding Partners for a view. A majority decision then prevails.

These criteria will not apply to approximately 8000 sq. ft. designated as anchor tenancy
space within the Centre, although the appropriateness of the anchor tenant should receive
full and careful consideration.

4.7 Exit Strategy

Occupation of the Centre is expected to level out and operate at around 85% tenant
capacity. It is therefore considered vital that a satisfactory ‘churn’ of new businesses is
maintained to preserve the integrity of the project.

The principle of ‘moving-on’ after four years in the Centre will be explained at the onset of a
tenancy and the license of tenant occupation will make specific reference to the ‘exit
strategy.

The structure of the tenant’s rental agreement will reflect a gradual move from a low rent
position, to market value rent, to an above-market value rent by the third year of occupancy.
This principle is applied to prepare a tenant for a move outside the Innovation Centre and to
encourage a tenant to seek competitive rented space elsewhere.

Page 52



It is not in the interest of any party to enforce the exit strategy before a business is capable
of surviving outside the Centre. The Operator will establish the robustness of a business to
move on before the exit strategy applies.

Where possible, the Operator will support the exiting tenant to relocate within Somerset.
Exceptions to the four-year rule include:

o A company is deemed to be placed at undue risk if an exit is forced upon them.

e A company may be at a critical point of expansion or contraction and the exit is deemed
to be inappropriately timed.

e A tenant has affected a move between suites within the Centre to accommodate the
growth of a company and the company is deemed to be in a new phase of growth.

e Special consideration should also be given if a business is part of a wider cluster or
collaboration within the Centre where the removal of that business will have a negative
impact on the remaining tenants.

In the event of a dispute over length of tenancy, the matter will be referred to the funding
partners and the majority decision will be final.

A tenant may move to a full standard lease agreement and become an ‘anchor tenant’ at the
Centre provided the amount of anchor tenancy space does not exceed approx. 8000 sq. ft.
in total.

In enforcing the exit strategy, the funding partners should not put the Operator in a position
where overall financial operating losses may result.

5. Performance

5.1 The overarching objectives of the project are to:

e Increase the number of business start-ups in South Somerset.

e Improve the survival and growth rates of knowledge based business in the county,
through access to high-quality business support.

e To create a regenerative effect locally, increase high value employment opportunities
and help diversify the local economy.

e To develop a wider network of entrepreneurs in the area and promote collaboration and
business development.

e To facilitate the provision of essential business skills and industry awareness among
entrepreneur clients.

Page 53



5.2 The key outcomes of the project will be to:
e Attract new and additional knowledge based businesses.

¢ Enhance the survival and growth prospects of these businesses through the provision of
high quality business support and mentoring.

e Create a wide network of businesses, promoting business collaboration amongst
knowledge based businesses.

¢ Widen employment opportunities in Yeovil and for further afield.

e Increase research and development and collaboration with the knowledge base for the
target sectors.

e Strengthen the role of Yeovil in the South West's focus on aerospace and advanced
engineering.

e Become self-supporting financially and thereby minimise the future demands on public
sector funding.

o It will also have a regenerative effect on surrounding area through physical refurbishment
of a prominent building.

o It will provide affordable business accommodation for knowledge based businesses, thus
meeting an identified need.

e YIC Phase 1 success will drive demand and need for a potential Phase 2, to expand the
service and sectors which could be assisted.

Page 54 w0



5.3 Performance Measures

These are set out for the six year period 2014 — 2020 but it is intended that the objectives
are revisited and their on-going relevance be ascertained as part of an annual review
process for YIC.

Project Outputs 2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20
1 Number of Tenants at YIC 28 32 34 34 34 34
2 Floor space Occupied 75% 80% 85% 85% 85% 85%
3 Businesses Moved On 2 4 7 7 7 7
4 Businesses Created annually 2 2 7 7 7 7

4.b Ratio of businesses created
Indigenous: inward investment

5 Businesses created cumulative 25 27 34 41 48 55
6 Jobs created annually 4 8 14 14 14 14
7 Jobs created cumulative 124 132 146 160 174 188
8 Jobs safeguarded annually 120 132 135 135 135 135
9 Business supported annually 75 75 75 75 75 75
10 Number of new networks 2 2 2 2 2 2
created
11 Recovery of temporary £34k CE39k c£45k CE50k CE50k CE50k

Operator costs

12 Tenant Satisfaction Survey 65%+ 65%+ 65%+ 65%+ 65%+ 65%+
Score

Other measures and indicators:

Yeovil Innovation Centre also monitors and measures the following indicators from a more
operational angle to improve its service and knowledge wherever possible:

. Use of the Centre’s facilities by external organisations, businesses and community
groups for activities including meetings, training sessions and exhibitions. This is a
measure of the Centre’s external reach;

. Tenant satisfaction which is measured using a tenant survey which should be
commissioned annually to probe the tenant experience and provide important
feedback to the Centre Manager and Strategy Board

Page 55 H




. Participation of Centre staff in regional and sub-regional meetings, events and
activities as a measure of its involvement with the wider innovation community in
the Region.

6. Financial Plan

This consists of two elements - a revenue projection taking into account all the various
changes to the scheme as they currently stand and a risk assessment that takes into
account the risks identified and potential mitigation of those risks. The following points are
noted:

6.1 Revenue Projection

The revenue projection covers the financial years to 2019/20. This projection will be
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted accordingly. This updated position will be
provided to the financial partners and to the Strategy Board. The figures include the recovery
of revenue losses.

Revenue Projection

(Including Maintenance Plan & SSDC Costs)

Year 2014115 2015M6 2016/17 2017118 2018/19 2019/20
Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Occupancy % 76 g0 85 85 85 85
Income 429704 445000 450,000 460000 469200 478584
Expenditure
Non Pay 202614 225000 200,000 210,000 220500 231525
Staff Costs 152 408 153932 155471 157026 158596 160,182
Support Service Costs 36,484 37879 38,706 39 867 41 063 42 295
Total Expenditure 391,506 416,511 394177 406893 420,159 434,002
Net Profit/(Loss) | 38198 | 28480 | 55823 | 53107 | 49041 | 44582 |
Recovery SSDC costs 38,198 28,489 55,823 53,107 49 041 44 582

Figures as of November 2015

6.2 Maintenance Schedule

The Maintenance Schedule has been prepared and is available separately as an electronic
attachment.

Page 56 o




The costs within the maintenance schedule include the cost of a replacement roof. Whilst
this may not be necessary in the lifetime of this business plan, the funding partners will need
to agree as to when this measure will take place.

6.3 Profit and Loss Sharing

SSDC will recover their operating costs as part of an ongoing process. Whilst it is highly
unlikely that the project will lapse back into a loss-making situation, the partners should be
prepared to assume a proportionate responsibility for any operating losses beyond 2014.

Should any operating losses be accrued beyond this date then the losses should be divided
and borne by the partners. The apportionment of such loss is yet to be agreed.

Original Capital Profit or Loss Share
Partner
Invested percentages
HCA 2,910,000 60
SSDC 1,200,000 24
SCC 750,000 16
Totals £ 4,860,000 100

6.4 Risk Assessment

There are five areas of financial risk identified that could affect the viability of this project
where potential mitigation could be achieved.

Risk Level of Mitigation measures Residual level of
Identified Risk Risk
Management Low Adhering to current staffing structure | Low
Costs with review at point of Operator
Review
Business Medium Apply for small business rates relief | Medium/Low
Rates where and whilst possible. Maintain
high occupancy rates of units
Attracting and | Medium On-going marketing campaign with Medium Low
retaining reasonable flexibility around lease
anchor tenants negotiations
Maintaining Medium Sliding scale on tenant rentals over | Low
and increasing duration of occupation. Annual
rental levels review of market rental levels with
adjustments as necessary
Operator Low SSDC to remain as operator with Low
default first review at December 2016

Page 57 e




7. Future Strategy

The growth of the Centre is finite in terms of the tenancy space available. The key
consideration for future growth is how to increase the tenancy space available without
increasing the costs of the front of house operation or the business support capabilities.
Increasing the size of the building is an option with two possible areas of land that might be
available for future expansion.

One possible location for expansion is the land immediately to the west of the existing
building. This is a field within the existing industrial park and within the ownership of two of
the funding partners. Both partners have agreed that this land may be used for expansion of
the existing operation. Acquiring adjacent land (not within the ownership of the partnership)
would be the second consideration. Valuations of prospective sites were undertaken in
December 2012.

Additional research and consultation will be undertaken during the coming year to establish
the demand and need for a Phase 2 YIC.

Full consideration also needs to be given to converting unused anchor tenancy space within
the existing Centre to smaller units suitable for business start-up.

Page 58 H



Appendix 1
Analysis of Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats
This SWOT incorporates the views of operating staff, tenants and the two external audits

that had been undertaken to review the practice and processes of the Centre. The key points
raised by the analysis are recorded thus:

Strengths Weaknesses
1. Project is proving a success 1. No bespoke financial advice provided at
2. YIC has moved to a break-even position YIC
(or better) 2. Strategy Board needs to be more
3. SSDC will now recover its earlier strategic with a separate board or sub-
revenue investment board for funding partners to discuss
4. Excellent feedback from tenants their interests
5. Excellent feedback from external parties | 3. Part of 1* floor empty (anchor tenancy
space)

4. High maintenance building (£115k pa
business rates)

5. No ’sinking fund’ - appropriate amount to
be transferred to ring-fenced
maintenance budget annually

6. Hands tied on adjacent field, beneficial
interest lies with HCA

7. Large suites not attractive to start-ups

Need an investment fund

9. Need better university connections

©

Opportunities Threats

1. The concept can be transferred 1. Empty property rates

elsewhere 2. Perception of competition
2. Review of Innovation Centre 3. Anchor tenant could move out (10 year
3. Change role of Strategy Board with lease with 3, 5, 7 year reviews)

tenant representatives 4. Sterilization of land by wind turbine
4. Better LEP representation on Board 5. No guaranteed cash flow
5. 2 tenants within Innovation Centre 6. Rent reviews required
6. Purchase of land to the rear of Paragon
7. Rent reviews required

An overview of some key issues
e Recovery by SSDC of unmet revenue costs before funding partners are able to take a
profit or reinvest the surplus back into the Centre.

Page 59 15




The Centre needs to engage with the LEP and align its strategy with the LEP to
maximise opportunities to secure funding.

The Centre needs to broker financial support to enable clients to raise finance and help
clients to become investment ready.

The Centre must aim for less than 100% occupancy to allow for the movement of clients
as space requirements change. This movement will only take place if there is a
functioning exist strategy.

Page 60 w0



Agenda Item 11

Notification of an Urgent Executive Decision: The transfer of
two sections of SSDC land needed to conclude the Horsey
Roundabout improvements, Yeovil by 30 November 2015

Executive Portfolio Holders: Ric Pallister, Strategy and Policy
Peter Seib, Finance and Legal Services
Interim Chief Executive: Rina Singh, Interim Chief Executive Officer
Assistant Director: Donna Parham, Finance and Corporate Services
Lead Officers: Diane Layzell, Senior Land and Property Officer
Contact Details: Diane.layzell@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462058

Purpose of the Report

The purpose of this report is to note the urgent decision taken under Part 3, section 6(4) and
Part 4, paragraph 34.1 of the Council’s Constitution (May 2015 version), to agree to the land
transfer of two sections of the Councils land, at Brunswick Street Car Park and Hendford Hill
in Yeovil, to Somerset County Council in order to enable them to conclude Highways Horsey
Roundabout, footpath and cycleway improvement.

Forward Plan

This report has not appeared on the District Executive Forward Plan as the negotiations
were not concluded until 19 November 2015 and the urgency is due to the need for
contractors to be on site as soon as possible to avoid delays in opening the traffic lane for
access to the Town Centre as soon as possible. Delaying the report until the District
Executive meeting would mean that work would need to stop on site until the decision was
made.

Public Interest

Highways improvements to Horsey Roundabout are currently underway with Hendford Hill
and Brunswick Street currently closed. As part of these improvements a section of the
District Councils car park at Brunswick Street is needed. This report covers the internal
policies and procedures the Council are undertaking in order to aid Highways with their
scheme requirements.

Recommendation

To note that, according to the provision of Part 3 Section 6(4) and Part 4, paragraph 34.1 of
the Constitution, the Acting Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader of the Council
and the Portfolio Holder for Asset Management agreed to make an urgent decision to
authorise the freehold transfer of the areas identified on the plan, coloured red, to Somerset
County Council for the consideration payment of £15,000. Somerset County Council will pay
the District Councils legal and professional costs incurred as a result of this transaction and
that the land to be transferred to Somerset County Council will include the newly constructed
boundary wall.

Background to the land requirements.
Since 1 September 2015, Somerset County Council have been conducting roundabout

improvements which have resulted in the road closures at Hendford Hill and Brunswick
Street. As part of these improvements, two sections of Council land were identified as being

Page 61



needed to facilitate the works. The majority of SSDC land needed forms part of the
Brunswick Street Car Park and is situated on the corner of our Brunswick Street and the
entrance road to Goldenstones and the Country Park. The transfer of this land will result in
the loss of approximately 2 car parking spaces.

The second section of SSDC land needed is a small section amenity land at our access out
onto Hendford Hill. Both areas of land have been coloured red on the attached plans, an
additional plan giving a more detailed representation of the works on the Brunswick Street
Car Park has also been included.

The Councils “in principal” decision to this land transfer was obtained via the Land and
Property internal consultation process in July 2015. Officers have been in discussions with
Somerset County Council since with the District Valuer being instructed in August 2015 to
conclude the land value negotiations. The consideration payment was agreed on 19
November 2015 at £15,000 and Somerset County Council will also pay the District Councils
legal and professional costs incurred during these negotiations.

Unfortunately, to conclude the works within the road closure timeframe and to avoid any
further disruption to motorists using this route, Somerset County Council need immediate
access and it is proposed to allow this to happen before the legal works have been
concluded.

As part of the land transfer, the newly constructed Boundary Wall will be included in the land
transfer to Somerset County Council, passing any future maintenance liabilities to them in
the future.

Financial Implications

By approving this land transfer, the Council would receive a net capital receipt of £15,000,
which will be released for other capital projects. If the sum were invested it would earn an
average of £525.00 per annum over the longer term.

The District Councils’ legal and professional costs will be recovered from Somerset County
Council.

Reason for urgency

The Horsey Roundabout improvements are scheduled to finish and the road reopened on
Monday 30 November 2015. Due to the length of time it has taken to conclude the
negotiations, in order to meet this deadline Somerset County Highways need to commence
work on site this week (week beginning 23 November 2015). Any delays will result in the
road closures extending and additional future disruption in the lead up to the Christmas
shopping period. Once concluded, the works should result in significant improvement in
traffic management as well as provide improvement pedestrian and cycle routes in this area
of the town

Page 62



28533IER-HLT-T00-H

tazy

Ay

Reter 1o Drawng 2853 8ER HLT-700.02 |

L

il

HEALTH AND EAFETY BFORMATION

A

|scts\2DSITER-HLT_YEC_Horeoy_Rbi_Op_DevACAD'Working_DrowingsiDetalied_Deslgnl700-Road PoromontsISIIIER-HLT-T00.dwp
/s

Signteanl o uncaplional risks sy atfied below
€ontruction Phase

1. Fieasa ra'er lo Do pro conslradion has®h and salety Fia end Ba
worky Information for deta’ of ba faka perociated win i work,

2

prEp o
300 b4 fven 10 Bia Ciowt poximiy of By SCres bl may b
SEaciad by soainction,
3. Residunt hazasds 004 Bsied e 0nd referanced on 10a Grawing.
& Thars wra 8 sumbsr of 1Ty and 30y cabies T and siongeio
Lytmndar Resd, Handford 1, Brunweick Srest and adacent b
15 m3i889 foobwsys Connacting hess mada. Ther 572 130
Pmrout cihet buried aeikss P weds rea
b. Existing Walercoursa wih szl woping banks.
€ Yiaing sgacent b b nfta,

P e EATAUFILOI Ut WHTIZESI20 Somarssl,
1

.—.n—-ﬂiu—-u:;

¥ bl

4 [ & petatia | i
1 PR ata 1% b s e dmriorion hedtn aof Ll e ] B
ripliiader nd reos e aratey or dete 1 of I i hs s
B fhe ¥ RS Crtatay, 4y i demtiner
i .
JE WA Sa g B0 b e mionduieton nth e heads d eats,
Pt e ]
s prge

3.

-Pavemant Typs A« Full Carriagawsy Construckion.
- -Pavement Typa B - Surfaze Coursa Inlay (including
Ly 45mm cold mising).

- Pavermant Typs G1 - Gransarsis (Vehictes)
- Pavernent Typs C2 - Grasscreta (Pecesirians)
- Paverment Typs D - Car Park Consiruction.
Footways & Paved Aess.

«FiA+ Full Foctway Consiruction - Red Coloured
BT -Fia- Foaroces

-na-mm-mw
-F2A- mﬁfwm Iriay.
" R e
aene RUNECT

[.77] - F28- Foctway Surtace Courss end Binder Course
Regulating. Black Coloured Surfacing.

Surisce Courss end Binder Coursa
Red Coloured Surfading.

fatsaiii] -anqﬂPm-mmehb:
- Bull Tectle Paving - 400mm x 400mm Slebs.
- Buff Corduroy Paving - 400me x 400mm Siabs.
Kerts & Edolgs
= .HE2 - Haf Batered Kert - 125m Upstand.
)
e e oy
drywings. 125mm vpstard.
2 ok -Drosper ke,
E"2-] . DKL - Dropper Kerb Iatd on Baany Block Bass uril
with cover plste.

— ,I-Blﬂ = Bulincsed Kerb - Dmm Upstand,
22} . 8225 - Buinosed Kerb - 25mm Upstand.

22 . BaLD - Buliiosed Kerb Iald o Beany Block Base
il with cover plate. O Lpsiand,

E22 . 8610 - 5509 Erd Top Unit bansion fom Hat
Batared siraight backed Beany Block b

Half beered kerd lsld cn Beany Block Basy
unlt with coves plate. 125mm vpstand.

2221 - ACLD - Acoess Unit Hat Baiiered Swaight backed

- Beany Block on 205mm besa units. 128mm
2o -8R - Splay Kerb 425 upstand.

=] «TR = Transiion kb - Ha baliered 1o Splay Karb.
iy -CS1 - Precast Concrela Channel Bock.

S| -EF - Edging Kerb- Flush with Back of Feotway.

__—"'/ —
= ==
1. Fer all construction Catals and requiremants
1o drewing 288333ER-HLT-700-11

A30 Yeovil Eastern Corridor
Horsey Roundabout

Somerset County Council
L

fest madd T ary )
B Construction
oS [omm__ WA

teyee N Y

Footways and
Paved Areas

Road Pavements, Kerbs

CLOV0M | bowe 1290 [A1] Bem  1of2

285333ER-HLT-700-01 | B

© Copyright Farsors Bandiesall




Key

Pesements

[EE5] - Pevement Typa A~ Ful Camiageway Consinction.

[T ] -Pavement Typa B - Surisce Coursa lnlay (inchudicg

4Emm cold miling).

- Pavement Typa C1 - Grassarete (Vehices)

- Pavement Type C2 - Grasscreta (Podestians)

+Pavemsnt Typa D - Car Park Consiruckicn.

Foctways & Paved Aveas

PR - FIA- Ful Foctway Consinetion « Red Caloured
Surfacing.

+F1B - Full Footway Consinuction - Black Calowed
Surfacing.

«F2A+ Footway Surface end Binder Course bisy.
Red Coloared Surfacing.

-F2B - Footway Surfaca and Binder Coursa sy,

[T -FaA- Footway Surface Coursa and Binder Course
Regulating. Red Coloursd Surfacing.

+F33 - Footway Burfaca Cowrsa and Bindsr Courga
Regulsting. Black Coloured Surfechng.

EHEFHA « Red Tacila Paving « 400mm x 400mm Sibs.
- Bulf Tacifa Paving - 400mm x 400mm Sisb 5.
- Buff Corduroy Paving - 400mm x 400mem Sizbs,

Kerts & Edgings
2] .Hg2 - Haif Batered Kerb - 128mm Upsiand

22+ . HBLD - Ha¥ Batiared Biraight Backed Beany Block
o0 basa unit 63 shown on 500 sales.

=22+ . DKLD - Dropper Kerb laid on Baany Block Basa uit
whh covar plate,

2= . 825 - Butinosed Kerb - 250m Upsiand.

22 BNLD - Bulincsed Kerb laid cn Baany Biock Basa
wnit with cover plale. Omm upstand.

122 L €ELD - E10p End Tep Und kranslion kom Hal
Bakiered siraight backed Beany Block 1o
Haif batered kerb aid on Baany Elock Base
S

22| | pGLD - Ascass UnitHall Batered Svaight backed
Beany Block on 205mm base unils. 125mm
upstand.

=2~ -8P - Splay Keeb.125 upstand.

2] -TR - Transiion kerb - Halfbatiared ko Splay Kerb.

cay | -CS1 - Precast Concrets Channel Biock.
feof -EF -+ Edging Kerb- Flush wih back of Fochsay.

Fin P WEATAUFILOTUNMEUWHTIZAG33)_Bomersat COVProjects\IB5XI3ER

T
Significant of exptonal riska are Idank fad below
1. Plrase rafer b [ha pes consincicn haath and salely Wi and e
dotsls el

2 In preparation ef eenstructon matod patsmants conal deaton
should dein tal sy te

facied by carabction.
4. Rasidual hacwets oy fsled heve wnd releerced o4 o eaing.
& Trecs svu o rombar of 11k asd 330 cables i and songada
Lysanger afacend
8 exipiing fockasys connsctig Dasd ads. Thacs 70 32y
Fumersen ether buried laciBen in a works 18
b, Working sacent b v iaitc.
v | eppintical
1. Freass peloe Ia 1A pes comirucion Bask i sately e 25d U
stanance wad epse shalegy U celaly of P raks astocaled
0 s ainkenonc, Cesrahon, Sesomemybateg sl devcn
iater d
3 This deswg abould be re2d i (oyurmiion ath Fe healin 3nd iy
Fiafs) prochaad ad handed oeéd ) Competon of 1. paciact
3 Reredaal harants e Lated berw #3d plenacel oy ey

3, Trees ove mrumoer o |10y asd 3307 cablon 1y rl phpmmsds
L fiemd o b, dend kst 13

14 B eisiag foobyays Ganaeding Inate ade Ther 19 403
remerpes cther birad frefibel n il workt es

Consiruction

g PAHSONS 2 el R | L)

z 50 g, t County Gouncil = 9 3

ig g g BRINCKERHOFF .,.:..Te:' i:my “ A30 Yeovil Eastern Corridor Road Pavemenls, Kerbs  |&=
£ ; Towhe WL (05) J45ns Horsey Roundabout Footways and

% ; w | g A3, T o Bt s 285330ERHLT-70002 | B
i St T3l a7 TP © Copyright Parsors Bircasall




Al

2B533IER-HLT-240001

T-2400-01.0wn

o SO ._.a.nh,‘“hl.”mw
STH3AT o
355396.781
115510.851
58.884

Py -

Bricowork, Blockwork &

- Pt -

e

Y

\ ?1.___&;\,, X
_ *?%\:-,-is‘\a ,

\

Brunswick Sireat

Existng 11KV Voltage
Eleciricly Cables Present

it hwm.lwmv k
Catla i o _
mnn?muu T ———

e W e e e
/\
\ Bt Nagey - -~ Bty -

TR - By - - gy

—y ¥
B> A > B Bick on Edga Trpn
Ceping
2
e Pil ol Fren |
End 30140
528 S
B
LR b
wan,
"L S s 7 S P SN .- SN~ o TS T S L P S8 e 1 b
! i~ -
Concrete S¥ip Foundstien L
75 Conermts
> A B

Wall L
Ecala 125Q A1

\_aunmm

!

\,
\ A

conshcton Type

&
) 7 09) Ssction B-B (Ch 5.0
a: Baa 123 gAY Exxn125@ A1
i& HEALTH AND SAFETY INFOAUATION I
g—wumm-wwm ] i S T
3 1 m-.—m . | i Jl g Bch en Eage
E worka information ko detaln of s riska aasociled wih Iy mowt. 5 Key 1 Trea Coping
2 d| H 31 - Seting Oul Points
ghrento e tesn y mayhe ! Etating Car
wfected by rorstuction. i Pavemanty "f“"'"
L - Pavement Typs D+ Car Park Consiructon. - M
& Thess prw  numter of 11kv 804 33w Sties in nd slongeitia { III Liag 1200 Sp n bickecat S
E Haraord 15, Bamerek : Foobways & Paved Aress Pregesed petia
g ] - F1A- Full Foctway Construzéion - Red Colowred 44’_’_‘ ——
§ Gatranined. ot
enoe [T ~F2A~ Footuay Surtace erd Binssr Coura iy. Combormato g iz oreqtms il I S 2 e
Red Sarlacing. B /u-m fows:
fifchee i 1.Frezabawpssacs - F
“ Tetsof Ot £ Azten chbie vala conterd w
Zies Baseof Compression shects <1l leny PaaTE
g % Sefing Out Pornl x ¥ el Vintar gt : ke
F bty il s et 115502 ber o) v Bicks shal ba of g colour and baskry spected by Fa
;. 2 55 116508 527 s z BAcks fa ba laid In Englsh garden mall ol
i ) 35588 11809701 s - &, Vo i h 8 0t it oot
L ) 32401891 e 31058 P e an
- = o | e e CONSTRUCTION
En—:q.g-nun—m-lln-.u—nm I — — = P — : —
=] b | o [oa 2= Cutet
et d [ |
R R = USIT - Somerset County Councll
HHE 4223 et v [l ? AR ERHOFF P ":) A30 Yeovil Eastern Cordor | Brunswick Street Car Park  [e=_tosaw o= o [mlew vai_
Tountzn L (0345) 3455155
E P cos M 4 o Horsey Roundabout Retalning Wall ARSER TR0
Py ——
3 -y eyl TAY 4D wamsamerul gorak 00-0
! ; B i = = & Capyighl Faners Brcarall




Agenda Item 12

District Executive Forward Plan

Executive Portfolio Holder:  Ric Pallister, Leader, Strategy and Policy

Assistant Director: lan Clarke, Legal and Corporate Services
Lead Officer: lan Clarke, Legal and Corporate Services
Contact Details: ian.clarke@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462184

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 This report informs Members of the current Executive Forward Plan, provides information
on Portfolio Holder decisions and on consultation documents received by the Council
that have been logged on the consultation database.

2. Public Interest

2.1 The District Executive Forward Plan lists the reports due to be discussed and decisions
due to be made by the Committee within the next few months. The Consultation
Database is a list of topics which the Council’s view is currently being consulted upon by
various outside organisations.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The District Executive is asked to:-

l. approve the updated Executive Forward Plan for publication as attached at Appendix

A;
Il. note the contents of the Consultation Database as shown at Appendix B.

4. Executive Forward Plan

4.1 The latest Forward Plan is attached at Appendix A. The timings given for reports to
come forward are indicative only, and occasionally may be re scheduled and new items
added as new circumstances arise.

5. Consultation Database

5.1 The Council has agreed a protocol for processing consultation documents received by
the Council. This requires consultation documents received to be logged and the
current consultation documents are attached at Appendix B.

6. Background Papers

6.1 None.

Page 66



SSDC Executive Forward Plan

Date of

) Q abed

Decision Decision Portfolio Service Director Contact Committee(s)
January Investment in Market Portfolio Holder for Strategic Director (Place & Colin McDonald,
2016 Housing Strategy and Policy Performance) Corporate Strategic District Executive
Housing Manager
January Adoption of the Portfolio Holder for Assistant Director Colin McDonald,
2016 Revised County Wide Strategy and Policy (Economy)00 Corporate Strategic District Executive
Tenancy Strategy Housing Manager
January South Somerset
2016 District Council
January Proposed Capital Portfolio Holder for Assistant Director (Finance Donna Parham, Assistant
) 2016 Schemes for 2016/17 Finance and Legal and Corporate Services)[1[] Director (Finance & District Executive
Services Corporate Services)
February South Somerset
y 2016 District Council
|
January Approval of the Portfolio Holder for Assistant Director (Finance Donna Parham, Assistant
2016 2016/17 Council Tax Finance and Legal and Corporate Services)O Director (Finance & District Executive
Reduction Scheme Services Corporate Services)
January South Somerset
2016 District Council
January Update on Medium Portfolio Holder for Assistant Director (Finance Donna Parham, Assistant
2016 Term Financial Plan Finance and Legal and Corporate Services) Director (Finance & District Executive

and Capital
Programme

Services

Corporate Services)




Date of

Monitoring Report

Performance Managers

. Decision Portfolio Service Director Contact Committee(s)
Decision
January Community Right to Portfolio Holder for Assistant Directors Helen Rultter,
2016 Bid Quarterly Update Strategic Planning (Communities) Assistant Director District Executive
Report (Place Making) (Communities)
February | South Somerset Portfolio Holder for Interim Chief Executives[] Vega Sturgess /
2016 District Council - Strategy and Policy Rina Singh District Executive
Future Management Interim Chief Executives
February | Options South Somerset
2016 District Council
February Budget for 2016/17 Portfolio Holder for Assistant Director (Finance Donna Parham, Assistant
2016 and Capital Finance and Legal and Corporate Services)[] Director (Finance & District Executive
, Programme Services Corporate Services)
5 February South Somerset
L% 2016 District Council
o . . . . . .
00 February | Capital & Revenue Portfolio Holder for Assistant Director (Finance Donna Parham, Assistant
2016 Budget monitoring Finance and Legal and Corporate Services) Director (Finance & District Executive
reports for Quarter 3 Services Corporate Services)
March Districtwide Grants - Portfolio Holder for Assistant Directors Assistant Directors
2016 approval of funding for | Strategy and Policy (Communities) (Communities) District Executive
SSVCA and SSCAB
March Quarterly Performance | Portfolio Holder for Strategic Director (Place & Charlotte Jones /
2016 and Complaints Strategy and Policy Performance) Andrew Gillespie District Executive




Date of

. Decision Portfolio Service Director Contact Committee(s)
Decision
April 2016 | Community Right to Portfolio Holder for Assistant Directors Helen Rutter,
Bid Quarterly Update Strategic Planning (Communities) Assistant Director District Executive
Report (Place Making) (Communities)
April 2016 | South Somerset Portfolio Holder for Assistant Directors Chereen Scott, South

Together Annual
Update

Strategy and Policy

(Communities)

Somerset Together Co-
ordinator

District Executive

69 abed




0/ abed

APPENDIX B - Current Consultations — December 2015

. . Response to Deadline
Purpose of Document Portfolio Director Contact for
be agreed by

response
Extending mandatory licensing of Houses in Multiple Area West Assistant Portfolio Alasdair Bell 18"
Occupation (HMOs) and related reforms Director Holder in December
A technical discussion document (Environment) consultation 2015
This paper sets out options for extending the scope of with officers
mandatory licensing of Houses of Multiple Occupation
(HMO). It also sets out our proposals to streamline the HMO
licensing process to reduce red tape.
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/HMO Licensing
Have your say on the future of Somerset bus services Property & Assistant Portfolio Nigel Collins 11"
and bus pass use Climate Director Holder in January
Somerset County Council is asking for views on proposed Change (Economy) consultation 2016

changes to bus routes and to its Discretionary Bus Pass
Policy. There are two separate consultations and further
details of each consultation can be found at:-

www.somerset.gov.uk/concessionaryfareconsultation
www.somerset.gov.uk/bussubsidysurvey

with officers



https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/HMO_Licensing
http://www.somerset.gov.uk/concessionaryfareconsultation
http://www.somerset.gov.uk/bussubsidysurvey

Agenda Item 13

Date of Next Meeting

Members are asked to note that the next scheduled meeting of the District Executive will
take place on Thursday, 70 January 2016 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices,
Brympton Way, Yeovil commencing at 9.30 a.m.

Page 71



	Agenda
	6 Funding for Citizens Advice South Somerset 2016/17
	7 Quarterly Performance and Complaints Monitoring Report - 2nd Quarter 2015/16
	7 Performance Appendix A Q2 2015 - 2016
	7 Performance Appendix B Complaints Q2 2015-2016

	9 Report of the Licensing Task and Finish Group
	9 Licensing Notes of Meeting with Yeovil Town Council
	9 Licensing Notes of Meeting with Wincanton Town Council

	10 Yeovil Innovation Centre - Business Plan and Update Report
	10 YIC Business Plan 2015-2020 - DEX report  Dec 2015

	11 Notification of an Urgent Executive Decision: The transfer of two sections of SSDC land needed to conclude the Horsey Roundabout improvements, Yeovil by 30 November 2015
	11 Horsey Roundabout plans

	12 District Executive Forward Plan
	12 Forward Plan Appendix A
	12 Current Consultations

	13 Date of Next Meeting

